
- 1 - 

 

BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 

 

THURSDAY 7TH OCTOBER 2021 

AT 6.00 P.M. 

 

PARKSIDE SUITE - PARKSIDE 

 

 

MEMBERS: Councillors L. C. R. Mallett (Chairman), P. J. Whittaker (Vice-

Chairman), A. J. B. Beaumont, R. E. Jenkins, J. E. King, 

A. D. Kriss, M. Middleton, C. J. Spencer and 

K. J.  Van Der Plank and Mr. B. McEldowney. 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

1. Apologies for Absence and Named Substitutes  

 

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Arrangements  

 

To invite Councillors to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary interests or Other 

Disclosable Interests they may have in items on the agenda, and to confirm 

the nature of those interests. 

 

3. To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Audit, Standards and 

Governance Committee meeting held on 15th July 2021 (Pages 1 - 8) 

 

4. Standards Regime - Monitoring Officers' Report (Pages 9 - 14) 

 

5. Grant Thornton - Progress Report - Verbal Update  

 

6. Internal Audit Monitoring Report (Pages 15 - 92) 

 

7. Risk Register Verbal Update  



- 2 - 

 

8. Risk Champion - Verbal Update Report (Councillor A. Beaumont)  

 

9. Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme (Pages 93 - 

94) 

 

 

 

 

  

K. DICKS 

Chief Executive  

Parkside 

Market Street 

BROMSGROVE 

Worcestershire 

B61 8DA 

 

29th September 2021 

 



- 3 - 

 

If you have any queries on this Agenda please contact  

Jo Gresham 

 

Parkside, Market Street, Bromsgrove, B61 8DA 

Tel: (01527) 64252 Ext: 3268 

Email: joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk 

  

 

GUIDANCE ON FACE-TO-FACE 

MEETINGS 
 

Due to the current Covid-19 pandemic Bromsgrove District Council will be 

holding this meeting in accordance with the relevant social distancing 

arrangements for holding face-to-face meetings at a local authority. 

If you have any questions regarding the agenda or attached papers, 

please do not hesitate to contact the officer named above. 

GUIDANCE FOR ELECTED MEMBERS ATTENDING MEETINGS IN 

PERSON 

 

In advance of the Committee meeting, Members are strongly encouraged to 

consider taking a lateral flow test, which can be obtained for free from the NHS 

website. Should the test be positive for Covid-19 then the Member should not 

attend the Committee meeting, should provide their apologies to the 

Democratic Services team and should self-isolate in accordance with national 

rules. 

 

Members and officers are strongly encouraged to wear face masks during the 

Council/Committee meeting, unless exempt. Face masks should only be 

removed temporarily if the Councillor/ officer requires a sip of water and should 

be reapplied as soon as possible. Refreshments will not be provided by the 

venue; therefore Members and officers are encouraged to bring your own 

supply of water. 

 

Hand sanitiser will be provided for Members to use throughout the meeting.  

 

The meeting venue will be fully ventilated, and Members and officers may need 

to consider wearing appropriate clothing in order to remain comfortable during 

proceedings. 

mailto:joanne.gresham@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


- 4 - 

PUBLIC ATTENDANCE AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 

Members of the public will still be able to access meetings of the Audit, 

Standards and Governance Committee in person if they wish to do so. 

However, due to social distancing requirements to ensure the safety of 

participants during the Covid-19 pandemic there will be limited capacity and 

members of the public will be allowed access on a first come, first served basis. 

Members of the public in attendance are strongly encouraged to wear face-

masks, to use the hand sanitiser that will be provided and will be required to sit 

in a socially distanced manner at the meetings. It should be noted that 

members of the public who choose to attend in person do so at their own risk.  

 

In line with Government guidelines, any member of the public who has received 

a positive result in a Covid-19 test on the day of a meeting should not attend in 

person and should self-isolate in accordance with the national rules. 

 

Notes:  

Although this is a public meeting, there are circumstances when Council 

might have to move into closed session to consider exempt or 

confidential information.  For agenda items that are exempt, the public are 

excluded and for any such items. 

 



- 5 - 

 
 
 
 

INFORMATION FOR THE PUBLIC 
 

Access to Information  
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 widened the rights of 
press and public to attend Local Authority meetings and to see certain 
documents.  Recently the Freedom of Information Act 2000 has further 
broadened these rights, and limited exemptions under the 1985 Act. 
 

 You can inspect agenda and public reports at least five days before 
the date of the meeting. 

 You can inspect minutes of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards for up to six years following a meeting. 

 You can have access, upon request, to the background papers on 
which reports are based for a period of up to six years from the date 
of the meeting.  These are listed at the end of each report. 

 An electronic register stating the names and addresses and 
electoral areas of all Councillors with details of the membership of 
all Committees etc. is available on our website. 

 A reasonable number of copies of agendas and reports relating to 
items to be considered in public will be made available to the public 
attending meetings of the Council, Cabinet and its 
Committees/Boards. 

 You have access to a list specifying those powers which the Council 
has delegated to its Officers indicating also the titles of the Officers 
concerned, as detailed in the Council’s Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegation. 

 
You can access the following documents: 
 

 Meeting Agendas 
 Meeting Minutes 
 The Council’s Constitution 

 
at  www.bromsgrove.gov.uk 
 

http://www.bromsgrove.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

1 
 

B R O M S G R O V E  D I S T R I C T  C O U N C I L 
 

MEETING OF THE AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
 

15TH JULY 2021, AT 6.00 P.M. 
 
 
 

PRESENT: Councillors A. J. B. Beaumont, A. D. Kriss, C. J. Spencer, 

P. J. Whittaker (Vice-Chairman, in the Chair), S. P. Douglas and 

Mr. B. McEldowney. 

 

 Observers:  Councillor. G.N. Denaro – Portfolio Holder for 

Finance and Enabling 

 

 Officers: Mrs. S. Hanley, Mr. C. Forrester, Ms. C. Flanagan, Mrs. 

J Gresham and Mr J. Galkowski. 

 

1/21   ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 

 

A nomination for the position of Chairman was received in respect of 

Councillor L. C. R. Mallett.  

 

RESOLVED that Councillor L. C. R. Mallett be elected Chairman of the 

Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 

 

2/21   ELECTION OF VICE CHAIRMAN 

 

A nomination for the position of Vice Chairman was received in respect 

of Councillor P. J. Whittaker. In the absence of Councillor L. Mallett, the 

meeting was chaired by Councillor P. Whittaker.  

 

RESOLVED that Councillor P. J. Whittaker be elected Vice Chairman of 

the Committee for the ensuing municipal year. 

 

3/21   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND NAMED SUBSTITUTES 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors R. Jenkins, J. E. 

King, L. C. R. Mallett, M. Middleton, K. J. Van Der Plank with Councillor 

S. Douglas present as substitute for Councillor R. Jenkins.  

 

4/21   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST AND WHIPPING ARRANGEMENTS 

 

There were no declarations of interest nor of any whipping 

arrangements. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

2 
 

 

5/21   TO CONFIRM THE ACCURACY OF THE MINUTES OF THE AUDIT, 

STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 

11TH MARCH 2021 

 

The minutes of the meeting of the Audit, Standards and Governance 

Committee held on 11th March 2021 were submitted for consideration by 

the Committee.  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Audit, Standards and Governance 

Committee meeting held on 11th March 2021 be approved as a correct 

record. 

 

6/21   INTERNAL AUDIT ANNUAL REPORT 2020 - 2021 

 

Due to technical issues experienced, Mr. A. Bromage, Head of Internal 

Audit Shared Service was unable to access the meeting via Microsoft 

Teams. It was agreed that the Committee would consider the report and 

that any questions received from Members would be passed on to Mr. A. 

Bromage. Any answers to the questions should be included as part of 

the next Internal Audit Progress Report which was due for consideration 

by the Committee in October 2021. 

 

During consideration of this item Members queried the following: 

 

1. Allocated number of Audit days – Members noted that there was 

a significant difference between the number of audit days 

allocated in the 2020-2021 municipal year and the actual number 

of audit days carried out during that time. It was with this in mind 

that some Members questioned whether it was more appropriate 

to allocate fewer days in order to make the target more 

achievable. 

2. Service Productivity – Members noted that within the report it was 

highlighted that there had been a decrease in Service Productivity 

from 81% to 62% and that the commentary within the report 

stated that this was positive. Members queried what metrics were 

being used to measure a positive outcome given that there had 

been a decrease in Service Productivity. 

 

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Annual Report 2020 – 2021 be 

noted. 

 

 

 

Page 2

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

3 
 

7/21   ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN  2021/22 

 

Members considered the Annual Audit Plan 2021-2022 and in doing so 

agreed that although the Head of Internal Audit Shared Service was not 

in attendance at the meeting it was important to consider the report. It 

was reported to Members that the plan being presented was already 

being followed for this municipal year.  

 

Councillor G. Denaro, who was in attendance in his role as Portfolio 

Holder for Finance and Enabling stated that this was a challenging Audit 

Plan being undertaken in unprecedented times.  

 

There was some discussion by Members regarding the Key 

Performance Indicators (KPIs) and how they were measured. The Head 

of Finance and Customer Services explained that only trends and target 

requirements were included in the Annual Audit Plan 2021/22 and that 

the 2021/22 position could only be measured at the end of the municipal 

year once the plan had been carried out. 

 

RESOLVED that 

 

1) the Audit Plan be approved; and  

 

2) the Key Performance Indicators be approved. 

 

8/21   STANDARDS REGIME - MONITORING OFFICERS' REPORT 

 

The Principal Solicitor presented the Monitoring Officer’s report and in 

doing so, the following was highlighted for Members’ attention: 

 

 No complaints had been received since the last meeting of the 

Committee and any that had been previously reported had been 

resolved locally. 

 Planning refresher training for Members had taken place online 

earlier in the municipal year.  

 

After consideration of the report Members were keen to understand what 

the plans were for holding in-person meetings going forward. The 

Principal Solicitor informed Members that a consultation was currently 

underway by Central Government in order to better understand the 

success of virtual and hybrid meetings at a local level. In respect of 

Health and Safety at in-person meetings it was explained that meetings 

had been subject to a risk assessment after working closely with the 

Council’s Health and Safety Advisor. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

4 
 

 

During consideration of this item Members raised some concerns 

regarding the sound quality at some of the previous meetings. It was 

explained to Members that testing had been carried prior to in-person 

meetings including the testing of audio and visual equipment. The 

Democratic Services Officer present undertook to provide feedback to 

relevant officers. 

 

RESOLVED that the Monitoring Officers' Report be noted. 

 

9/21   DISPENSATIONS REPORT 

 

The Principal Solicitor presented the Dispensations Report to the 

Committee and in doing so explained to the Committee that under the 

Localism Act 2011 there was a requirement to consider the granting of 

Individual Member Dispensations. In addition to this, it was necessary to 

consider General Dispensations (including Budget and Council Tax 

discussions) and Outside Body Appointment Dispensations. These 

dispensations would permit a Member to be involved in a debate of a 

particular subject. Members were informed that it was a matter for the 

Committee to decide whether the dispensations outlined within the 

report were reasonable requests.  

 

Following presentation of the report, Members agreed that this was a 

straight-forward report and thanked the Principal Solicitor for a clear and 

concise explanation. 

 

RESOLVED that  

 

1) (any Individual Member Dispensations (IMDs) and Outside 

Body Appointments dispensations requested by Members up 

to the point of the meeting, and as advised by the Monitoring 

Officer at the meeting, be granted under section 33 (2) of the 

Localism Act 2011, to allow those Member(s) to participate in 

and vote at Council and Committee meetings in the individual 

circumstances detailed; 

 

2) the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee grant a 

dispensation under Section 33 (2) of the Localism Act 2011 to 

allow Members to address Council and Committees in 

circumstances where a member of the public may elect to 

speak; 

 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

5 
 

3) subject to the caveat set out in paragraph 4.9 of this report in 

relation to setting the Council’s Budget, the Audit, Standards 

and Committee grants dispensations under Section 33 (2) of 

the Localism Act 2011 to allow all Members to participate in 

and vote at Council and Committee meetings when 

considering the setting of: 

 

a) the Budget; 

b) Council Tax; 

c) Members' Allowances; and  

d) Non-Domestic Rates – Discretionary Rate Relief 

Policy and Guidance affecting properties within the 

District; 

 

4) it be noted that all dispensations granted by the Committee 

take effect on receipt of a written request from Members for 

such a dispensation and where Members may have a 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in the matter under 

consideration, which would otherwise preclude such 

participation and voting; and 

 

5) it be noted that the dispensations referred to at resolutions 

(1), (2) and (3) will remain valid until the first meeting of the 

Audit, Governance and Standards Committee following the 

next District Council Elections in 2023 unless amended by 

the Committee prior to that date.     

 

10/21   RIPA REPORT 2021-2022 

 

The Principal Solicitor presented the report in respect of the Regulation 

of Investigatory Powers Act 2000 (RIPA). She explained that this policy 

gave local authorities powers to conduct covert surveillance under 

certain circumstances.  

 

Members were advised that there was a requirement that elected 

members should, at least on an annual basis, review the RIPA policy 

and review the authority’s use of the Act. This enabled the Committee to 

be informed if any amendments had been made to the policy since it 

was last considered by the Committee.  

 

During the discussion of this item the following was highlighted for 

Members’ attention: 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

6 
 

 The RIPA regime was overseen by the Investigatory Powers 

Commissioner’s Office and inspections of organisations who held 

powers under RIPA were subject to an inspection, approximately 

every three years. The last inspection at the Council had taken 

place in 2018. This was considered a ‘light touch’ review as no 

RIPA powers had been exercised by the Council since 2012. It 

was reported to Members that the RIPA regime was considered 

resource intensive however it was not possible to ‘opt out’ even if 

RIPA powers had not been exercised in a long time. 

 

The Principal Solicitor reported that the only amendment made to the 

RIPA policy since it was last considered by the Committee in July 

2020 was the appointment of Mr. J. Howse, Executive Director of 

Resources and s151 Officer, as the Council’s ‘Senior Responsible 

Officer’ for the RIPA regime. 

 

RESOLVED that  

 

a) the Council’s RIPA Policy as updated and reviewed, be  

       endorsed; and 

 

b) the update on RIPA activity, described in this report, be noted. 

 

11/21   RISK REGISTER UPDATE - VERBAL UPDATE 

 

The Head of Finance and Customer Services provided the Risk Register 

Update for Members’ consideration. He explained that currently projects 

were being undertaken with the Council’s insurance provider, Zurich. 

The projects included looking at best practice and internal policies from 

a risk perspective in order to improve and ensure robust processes were 

in place in this area. 

 

RESOLVED that the Risk Register Update be noted. 

 

12/21   RISK MANAGEMENT GROUP MONITORING - VERBAL UPDATE 

 

This item was considered as part of the previous item. 

 

RESOLVED that the Risk Management Group Monitoring Update be 

noted. 

 

13/21   ANNUAL APPOINTMENT OF RISK MANAGEMENT CHAMPION FOR 

THE COMMITTEE 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



Audit, Standards and Governance Committee 
15th July 2021 

7 
 

The Chairman asked for nominations for the role of Risk Management 

Champion for the Committee for the remainder of this municipal year.  

 

RESOLVED that Councillor A.J. Beaumont be appointed at Risk 

Management Champion for the Committee. 

 

14/21   AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE WORK 

PROGRAMME 

 

RESOLVED that the Committee’s Work Programme be noted. 

 

 

The meeting closed at 7.01 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

Chairman 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Audit, Standards &  
Governance Committee  7th October 

2021
  
 
MONITORING OFFICER’S REPORT 

 

Relevant Portfolio Holder  Councillor Geoff Denaro – Portfolio 

Holder for Finance and Enabling 

(including Governance) 

Portfolio Holder Consulted  Yes  

Relevant Head of Service Yes 

Report Author 

Claire Felton 

Job Title: Head of Legal, Democratic and 

Property Services 

Contact email: 

c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk  

Contact Tel: 01527 881429 

Wards Affected N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) consulted N/A 

Relevant Strategic Purpose(s) An Effective and Sustainable Council 

Non-Key Decision 

If you have any questions about this report, please contact the report author in 

advance of the meeting. 

 

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

 The Audit, Standards and Governance Committee is asked to 

RESOLVE that:-  

 

1) subject to Members’ comments, the report be noted 

 

2. BACKGROUND 

 

2.1 This report sets out the position in relation to key standards regime 

matters which are of relevance to the Audit, Standards and 

Governance Committee since the last update provided at the meeting 

of the Committee in July 2021. 

 

2.2 It has been proposed that a report of this nature be presented to each 

meeting of the Committee to ensure that Members are kept updated 

with any relevant standards matters.   

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

mailto:c.felton@bromsgroveandredditch.gov.uk


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Audit, Standards &  
Governance Committee  7th October 

2021
  
 
2.3 Any further updates arising after publication of this report, including any 

relevant standards issues raised by the Parish Councils’ 

Representative(s), will be reported on orally by Officers/the Parish 

Representative(s) at the meeting.   

 

3. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS   

  

3.1 There are no financial implications arising out of this report. 

   

4. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 

 

4.1 Chapter 7 of Part 1 of the Localism Act 2011 (‘the Act’) places a 

requirement on authorities to promote and maintain high standards of 

conduct by Members and co-opted (with voting rights) Members of an 

authority.  The Act also requires the authority to have in place 

arrangements under which allegations that either a district or parish 

councillor has breached his or her Code of Conduct can be 

investigated, together with arrangements under which decisions on 

such allegations can be made.   

 

5. STRATEGIC PURPOSES - IMPLICATIONS 

 

 Relevant Strategic Purpose  

 

5.1 It is important to ensure that the Council manages standards regime 

matters in an appropriate manner.  The issues detailed in this report 

help to ensure that there is an effective and sustainable Council.   

 

Climate Change Implications 

 

5.2 There are no specific climate change implications 

 

6. OTHER IMPLICATIONS  

 

 Equalities and Diversity Implications 

 

6.1 There are no direct implications arising out of this report.  Details of the 

Council’s arrangements for managing standards complaints under the 

Page 10

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Audit, Standards &  
Governance Committee  7th October 

2021
  
 

Localism Act 2011 are available on the Council’s website and from the 

Monitoring Officer on request. 

 

  

Operational Implications 

 

6.2 Member Complaints 

 

Since the last meeting of the Committee, one Member complaint and a 

number of general Parish Council queries of a procedural nature have 

been received and are being dealt with at local level.  

 

The New Normal  

 

6.3 The Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) 

(Flexibility of Local Authority Police and Crime Panel Meetings) 

(England and Wales) Regulations 2020 No.392 enabled Councils to 

hold virtual meetings in 2020 and early 2021.  The regulations in 

respect of remote meetings only applied until 6th May 2021.  As a 

result, from 7th May 2021 elected Members have needed to attend 

formal Committee meetings in person.  These rules do not apply to 

informal meetings, such as Scrutiny Task Groups or Member training 

and consequently a lot of informal and private meetings continue to 

take place remotely. 

 

6.4 There were very specific requirements detailed by the Government for 

meetings indoors during the national lockdown.  Since 19th July 2021, 

when the last national lockdown ended, the Council has reviewed 

arrangements for Committee meetings that are being held in person.  

The Council has adopted a risk assessed based approach, informed by 

health and safety considerations, which has been determined by the 

Corporate Management Team following consultation with Group 

Leaders.  The arrangements are being reviewed on a monthly basis. 

 

6.5 The Council continues to strongly encourage social distancing at 

committee meetings, and this informs arrangements when organising 

meetings. Therefore, meetings held in-person are being organised so 

that attendees sit at least one metre apart and are strongly encouraged 

to wear face coverings throughout the meeting unless they are exempt.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Audit, Standards &  
Governance Committee  7th October 

2021
  
 

Where possible, Members and Officers are sat 2 metres apart to 

enable Members to safely remove their face coverings when talking at 

meetings.   

 

6.6 An in-depth all Member training session in respect of Local 

Government Finance is due to take place on 13th October 2021.

 This training will be facilitated by the Executive Director of Resources 

and the Head of Finance and Customer Services.  

 

6.7 The Member Development Steering Group is due to meet in October 

2021 and further meetings of the group are due to take place later in 

the municipal year. 

 

6.8 The Constitution Review Working Group continues to meet regularly. 

Any recommendations arising from meetings of this group will be 

reported to Council for Members’ consideration. 

 

7. RISK MANAGEMENT    

 

7.1  The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 

 Risk of challenge to Council decisions; and 

 Risk of complaints about elected Members.   

 

8. APPENDICES and BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 

No appendices. 

 

 Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 

 
  

Page 12

Agenda Item 4



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL  

 
Audit, Standards &  
Governance Committee  7th October 

2021
  
 
9.  REPORT SIGN OFF 
  

 
Department 
 

 
Name and Job Title 

 
Date 
 

 
Portfolio Holder 
 

Councillor Geoff Denaro – 
Portfolio Holder for 
Governance 

24/09/2021 

 
Lead Director / Head of 
Service 
 

Claire Felton - Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

 24/09/2021 

 
Financial Services 
 

 
N/A 

 

 
Legal Services 
 

Claire Felton - Head of Legal, 
Equalities and Democratic 
Services and Monitoring 
Officer 

24/09/2021 

 
Policy Team (if equalities 
implications apply) 
 

 
N/A 

 

 
Climate Change Officer (if 
climate change 
implications apply) 
 

 
 
N/A 

 

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
THE INTERNAL AUDIT PROGRESS REPORT OF THE HEAD OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT 
SHARED SERVICE ~ WORCESTERSHIRE INTERNAL AUDIT SHARED SERVICE. 
 
 

Relevant Portfolio Holder Councillor Geoff Denaro 

Portfolio Holder Consulted Yes 

Relevant Head of Service 
Chris Forrester, Head of Finance and 
Customer Services 

Ward(s) Affected All Wards 

Ward Councillor(s) Consulted No 

Key Decision / Non-Key Decision Non–Key Decision 

 
 
1. SUMMARY OF PROPOSALS 
 
1.1  To present: 

 the progress report of internal audit work for 2021/22. 
 
2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to note the report. 
 
 
3. KEY ISSUES 

 
Financial Implications 

 
3.1 There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report. 
 
 
 Legal Implications 
 
3.2 The Council is required under Regulation 6 of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2018 

to “maintain in accordance with proper practices an adequate and effective system of 
internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control”. 

 
 

Service / Operational Implications 
 

3.3 The involvement of Members in progress monitoring is considered an important facet of 
good corporate governance, contributing to the internal control assurance given in the 
Council’s Annual Governance Statement. 

 
3.4 This section of the report provides commentary on Internal Audit’s performance for the 

period 01st April 2021 to 31st August 2021 against the performance indicators agreed for 
the service. 

 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
3.5 Summary Dashboard: 

Total reviews planned for 2021/22:  12 (minimum) 
Reviews finalised to date for 2021/22:  1 (including DFG’s) 
Assurance of ‘moderate’ or below:  1 
Reviews currently awaiting final sign off: 2 
Reviews ongoing:    5 
Reviews to be completed (Q3 & 4):  7 
Number of ‘High’ Priority recommendations reported to date: 0 
Satisfied ‘High’ priority recommendations to date:   0 
Productivity (end of Q1)  59% (against targeted 74%) 
Overall plan delivery to date:  43% (against target >90%) 
 
 
Since the last progress report presented to the Committee, one 2021/22 review has 
been finalised and reported at Appendix 3, one review is awaiting final management 
sign off with a further review at clearance. 
 
Follow Up reports that have been finalised since the last Committee sitting are reported 
in Appendix 4. 
 
All ‘limited’ assurance reviews go before CMT for full consideration. 
 
 

3.6  RESIDUAL 2020/21 AUDITS 
 

Reports that have been completed since the last progress report and reported for 
information include: 

 Use of Agency and Consultants 

 Council Tax 

 National Non-Domestic Rates 

 Benefits 

 Health and Safety 

 Creditors 

 Main Ledger 
 

 
The outcomes of the above reviews are reported at Appendix 3. 
 
2021/22 AUDITS TAKING PLACE AS AT 31st AUGUST 2021 
 
Due to the implementation of the new financial system and an extended delay to provide 
audit with a ‘read only’ access the rolling testing programme that should have been 
continuing during quarters 1 and 2 has not taken place.  The result will be a smaller 
sample overall and a reliance on the review testing due to take place in Q3 and Q4 to 
provide a formal assurance.  
 
The review that has been finalised is: 

 Projects 
 
The review at draft report stage is: 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
 Worcester Regulatory Services 

 
The review at clearance stage is: 

 GDPR 
 

Reviews that had commenced and at planning or testing stages included: 

 Treasury Management 

 Procurement 

 Grants 

 Benefits 

 NNDR 
 
 
As the above are classified as ‘on going’ the assurance and outcome of the reviews will 
be reported at Committee on completion.  
  
Critical review audits are designed to add value to an evolving Service area.  Depending 
on the transformation that a Service is experiencing at the time of a scheduled review a 
decision is made regarding the audit approach. Where there is significant change taking 
place due to transformation, restructuring, significant legislative update, or a comparison 
required a critical review approach will be used.  To assist the service area to move 
forwards challenge areas will be identified using audit review techniques. The 
percentage of critical reviews will be confirmed as part of the overall outturn figure for 
the audit programme. The outturn from the reviews will be reported in summary format 
as part of the regular reporting as indicated at 3.5 above. 
 
Internal Audit is continuing to consider new processes emerging from the changing 
working arrangements that have been necessary to continue to provide the Bromsgrove 
residents with services because of the pandemic. Plan flexibility will continue to be 
required to include and provide assurance on potential areas of change. 
 
Follow up reviews are an integral part of the audit process.  There is a rolling 
programme of review that is undertaken to ensure that there is progress with the 
implementation of the agreed action plans.  The outcomes of the follow up reviews are 
reported in full, where applicable, so the general direction of travel and the risk exposure 
can be considered by Committee.  An escalation process involving CMT and SMT is in 
place to ensure more effective use of resource regarding follow up with the aim to 
reduce the number of revisits necessary to confirm the recommendations have been 
satisfied. There are no material exceptions to report currently. 
 

3.7      AUDIT DAYS 
 

Appendix 1 shows that progress continues to be made towards delivering the Internal 
Audit Plan and achieving the targets set for the year.  As at 31st August 2021 a total of 
98 days had been delivered against a target of 280 days for 2021/22. 
 
Appendix 2 shows the performance indicators for the service.  These indicators were 
agreed by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on the 15th July 2021 for 
2021/22. 
 

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
Appendix 3 provides copies of the reports that have been completed and final reports 
issued since the last sitting of Committee. 
 
Appendix 4 provides the Committee with ‘Follow Up’ reports that have been undertaken 
to monitor audit recommendation implementation progress by management. 
 
Appendix 5 provides an overview of the Quality Assurance Improvement Plan. 
 

3.8 OTHER KEY AUDIT WORK 
 

Much internal audit work is carried out “behind the scenes” but is not always the subject 
of a formal report. Productive audit time is accurately recorded against the service or 
function as appropriate. Examples include: 
 

 Governance for example assisting with the Annual Government Statement 

 Risk management 

 Transformation review providing support as a critical review 

 Dissemination of information regarding potential fraud cases likely to affect the 
Council 

 Drawing managers’ attention to specific audit or risk issues 

 Audit advice and commentary 

 Internal audit recommendations: follow up review to analyse progress 

 Day to day audit support and advice for example control implications, etc. 

 Networking with audit colleagues in other Councils on professional points of 
practice 

 National Fraud Initiative coordination of uploads. 

 Investigations 
 
 
 

3.9 National Fraud Initiative 
 

 NFI data set result checks from the most recent data set uploads have continued.   
WIASS will continue to provide advice and assistance regarding the process.  The next 
data set upload is December 2021 where WIASS will provide a coordinating role. 

 
 
3.10 Monitoring 
 
 To ensure the ongoing delivery of the 2021/22 plan and any revision required there is 

close and continual monitoring of the plan delivery, forecasted requirements of resource 
– v – actual delivery, and where necessary, additional resource will be secured to assist 
with the overall Service demands.  The Head of Internal Audit Shared Service remains 
confident his team will be able to provide the required coverage for the year to ensure an 
internal audit opinion can be reached using reviews from the authority’s core financial 
systems, as well as other systems which have been deemed to be ‘high’ and ‘medium’ 
risk. Any changes to the plan will be discussed with the S151 Officer and reported to 
Committee. 

 
 

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
 
3.11 Quality Assurance Improvement Plan 
 
3.12 WIASS delivers the audit programme in conformance with the International Standards for 

the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing (ISPPIA) as published by the Institute of 
Internal Auditors. A self-assessment took place in August 2020 to identify potential areas 
for improvement and a programme of improvement was agreed before the Client Officer 
Group in September 2020.  Action to date is reported for information at Appendix 5. 

 
 
3.13 Customer / Equalities and Diversity Implications 
  

There are no implications arising out of this report. 
 
 Assurance and Independence 
 
3.14 WIASS recognise there are other review functions providing other sources of assurance 

(both internally and externally) over aspects of the Council’s operations.  Where possible 
we will seek to place reliance on such work thus reducing the internal audit coverage as 
required. 

 
3.15 WIASS confirms it acts independently in its role and provision of internal audit. 
 
 
 
4. RISK MANAGEMENT 

 
The main risks associated with the details included in this report are: 
 

 failure to complete the planned programme of audit work for the financial year; 
and, 

 

 the continuous provision of an internal audit service is not maintained. 
 
 
 

5. APPENDICES 
 

   Appendix 1 ~ Internal Audit Plan delivery 2021/22 
   Appendix 2 ~ Plan position and key performance indicators 2021/22 
   Appendix 3 ~ Finalised audit reports including definitions 2021/22 & 2020/21 
   Appendix 4 ~ Finalised ‘follow-up’ reports. 
   Appendix 5 ~ Quality Assurance Improvement Plan          
    
       
 
6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 

 
  Individual internal audit reports are held by Internal Audit. 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
7. KEY 

 
N/a 
 
 
 

AUTHOR OF REPORT 
 
Name:   Andy Bromage 

Head of Internal Audit Shared Service,  
Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 

Tel:       01905 722051 
E Mail:  andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk     

  

Page 20

Agenda Item 6

mailto:andy.bromage@worcester.gov.uk


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
APPENDIX 1 

 
Delivery against Internal Audit Plan for 2021/22 

1st April 2021 to 31st August 2021 
 

Audit Area 

Original 
2021/22 

Total 
Planned 

Days 
 

 
Forecasted 
days to the 

30th 
September 

2021 
 

Actual 
Days Used 
to the 31st 

August 
2021 

Core Financial Systems (see note 1) 68 4 4 

 
Corporate Audits 62 31 34 

 
Other Systems Audits (see note 2) 64 36 46 

SUB TOTAL 194 71 84 

    

Audit Management Meetings 15 8 9 

 
Corporate Meetings / Reading 5 3 3 

 
Annual Plans, Reports and 
Committee Support 16 8 2 

    

Other chargeable (see note 3)    

SUB TOTAL 36 19 14 

 
TOTAL 230 90 98 

    

 
 
Notes: 
 
Audit days used are rounded to the nearest whole. 
 
Note 1:      Core Financial Systems are audited predominantly in quarters 3 and 4 in order to maximise the assurance provided for 
Annual Governance Statement and Statement of Accounts but not interfere with year end. A rolling programme has also been 
introduced for Debtors and Creditors to maximise coverage and sample size but internal audit has been unable to deliver this during 
2021/22 due to system access restrictions. The overall results will be reported during Q4. 
 
Note 2:   Several budgets in this section are ‘on demand’ (e.g. consultancy, investigations) so the requirements can fluctuate 
throughout the quarters. 
 
Note 3: ‘Other chargeable’ days equate to times where there has been, for example, significant disruption to the IT provision 
resulting in lost productivity. 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
APPENDIX 2 

Audit Plan Position as at the 31st August 2021 
 
 

Audit Area 

Corporate Link                                                       
(Corporate 
Priority / 
Strategic 
Purpose) 

Risk Register 
Reference 

Plan 
Priority 

Resource 
2021/22 

  Current Position 
Indicative 
Quarter  

FINANCIAL             

Debtors  (note 1) Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

12   To commence Q3 Q3 / Q4 

Main Ledger/Budget Monitor/Bank 
Rec   (note 1) 

Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

14   To commence Q3 

 
Q3 / Q4 

Creditors   (note 1) Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

12   To commence Q3 

 
Q3 / Q4 

Treasury Management  (incl. Asset & 

Acquisitions)  Light Touch    (note 2) 
Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

4   
Testing currently 

underway 

  
   Q2 / Q3 

Council Tax Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

8   To commence Q3 

 
Q3 / Q4 

Benefits  (Transformation) Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

10   
Planning 

commenced 

 
Q3 / Q4 

NNDR Enabling 

Lack of robust 
financial accounting 

and monitoring 
arrangement 

Medium/ 
High 

8   
Planning 

Commenced 

 
Q3 / Q4 

Sub TOTAL       68     

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 

Audit Area 

Corporate Link                                                       
(Corporate 
Priority / 
Strategic 
Purpose) 

Risk Register 
Reference 

Plan 
Priority 

Resource 
2021/22 

  Current Position 
Indicative 
Quarter  

CORPORATE               

IT Audit (Server patching and disaster 

recovery)   (note 3) 

Fundamental to 
strategic purpose 

delivery 

ICT 7 & ICT 8 Medium 9   To commence Q4 

Risk Management  (Critical Friend 

Support)   (note 4) 

Fundamental to 
strategic purpose 

delivery 

S151 request Medium 10   To commence Q4 

Procurement (note 5) 
Fundamental to 

strategic purpose 
delivery 

  Medium 9   Planning Review Q2 / Q3 

GDPR - Security of electronic data 
(note 6) 

Fundamental to 
strategic purpose 

delivery 

N/a Medium 9   Clearance  Q1 

Projects  (note 3) 
Fundamental to 

strategic purpose 
delivery 

N/a Medium 12   
Finalised 

9th September 2021 

 
Q1 

Disabled Facility Grants Enabling N/a Medium 3   Commenced  Q3 

Grants (various) Enabling N/a High 10   
Planning 

Commenced 
Q2 / Q3 

Sub TOTAL        62   
  

        

        

SERVICE DELIVERY   

Environmental   

Refuse Service scalability (new 

builds) (Critical Friend)  (note 3) 

Keep my place 
safe and looking 

good 

Env 24 
Low/ 

Medium 
7   To commence Q4 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 

Audit Area 

Corporate Link                                                       
(Corporate 
Priority / 
Strategic 
Purpose) 

Risk Register 
Reference 

Plan 
Priority 

Resource 
2021/22 

  Current Position 
Indicative 
Quarter  

Leisure  N/a 

    0   
 

  

Worcester Regulatory Services             

 (note 3) 
Statutory and 

Regulatory 
Requirement 

Head of Service 
request 

Medium 15   
Awaiting 

Management 
Response 

Q1 

Sub TOTAL        22     

        

Other Operational Work   

Advisory, Consultancy & 
Contingency 

Operational 
support 

N/a N/a 10   
Draw Down 

Budget 
Q1 to Q4 

Fraud & Investigations incl. NFI 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 10   

Draw Down 
Budget 

Q1 to Q4 

Completion of prior year's audits 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 8   Complete Q1 

Report Follow Up (all areas) 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 10   On going Q1 to Q4 

Statement of Internal Control 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 4   

Q1 Completed 
Q4 To commence 

Q1 & Q4 

Sub TOTAL        42   
  

        

Audit Management Meetings 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 15   On going Q1 to Q4 

Corporate Meetings / Reading 
Operational 

support 
N/a N/a 5   On going Q1 to Q4 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 

Audit Area 

Corporate Link                                                       
(Corporate 
Priority / 
Strategic 
Purpose) 

Risk Register 
Reference 

Plan 
Priority 

Resource 
2021/22 

  Current Position 
Indicative 
Quarter  

Annual Plans, Reports & 
Committee Support 

Operational 
support 

N/a N/a 16   On going Q1 to Q4 

Sub TOTAL        36   
  

                

TOTAL CHARGEABLE        230   
  

 
Explanatory Notes: 

*As part of the increasing joint and shared service working between Bromsgrove District Council and Redditch Borough Council the audit budgets and areas will feature in both internal 

audit plans and be consolidated to deliver a single piece of work covering both Councils. Where practically possible the days will be split equally between the plans.  Weighting will, 

however, be applied if it is considered the focus of the work will major on one Council. 

The customer journey will be considered overall as part of the service audits. 

Note 1:  New financial system therefore audit budget increase. 

Note 2:  Light touch due to improved processes. 

Note 3:  Rolled from 2020/21. 

Note 4:  Risk management relaunch reviewing ongoing progress against action plan and reporting. 

Note 5:  Rolled from 2020/21.  Consultant outcome - reviewing action plan delivery. 

Note 6: Previous audit was a ‘limited’ assurance outcome. 

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE 
Date: 7th October 2021 

 
 
Performance against Key Performance Indicators 2021-2022 

The success or otherwise of the Internal Audit Shared Service will be measured against some of the 

following key performance indicators for 2021/22. Other key performance indicators link to overall 

governance requirements of Bromsgrove District Council e.g. KPI 4.  The position will be reported on a 

cumulative basis throughout the year.  
 

 KPI Trend/Target 

requirement 

2021/22 Position (as 

at 31st August 2021) 

Trend 

Since last 

Reporting 

Frequency of 

Reporting 

Operational 

1 No. of audits achieved during 

the year  

Per target Target = 12 

Minimum 

Delivered = 1 

Plus 1 @ Draft 

1 @ Clearance 

 

⇑ 

When Audit 

Committee convene 

2 Percentage of Plan delivered >90% of agreed annual 

plan 

43%  ⇑ When Audit 

Committee convene 

3 Service productivity Positive direction year 

on year (Annual target 

74%) 

Q1   59%  

 

(2020/21 average 

62%)  

 When Audit 

Committee convene 

Monitoring & Governance 

4 No. of ‘high’ priority 

recommendations  

Downward 

(minimal) 

Nil to report to date 

(2020/21 = 3) 

 When Audit 

Committee convene 

5 No. of moderate or below 

assurances 

Downward 

(minimal) 

Nil to report to date 

(2020/21 = 7)  

 When Audit 

Committee convene 

6 ‘Follow Up’ results Management action plan 

implementation date 

exceeded 

(nil) 

Exceptions 

Nil to report 

(2020/21 = 0)  

⇔ When Audit 

Committee convene 

Customer Satisfaction 

7 No. of customers who assess 

the service as ‘excellent’ 

Upward(increasing) Nil to report to date 

(2020/21 1x excellent) 

⇔ 
When Audit 

Committee convene 

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

13 
 

APPENDIX 3 

 
The level of assurance and priority definitions indiocated below can be applied to both Appendix 3 and Appendix 4. 
 
 
Definition of Audit Opinion Levels of Assurance 
 

Opinion Definition 

Full 
Assurance 

The system of internal control meets the organisation’s objectives; all of the expected system controls tested are in place and are operating 
effectively.   
 
No specific follow up review will be undertaken; follow up will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system. 

Significant 
Assurance 

There is a generally sound system of internal control in place designed to meet the organisation’s objectives.  However isolated weaknesses in 
the design of controls or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas put the achievement of a limited number of system 
objectives at risk. 
 
Follow up of medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will be 
undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system. 

Moderate 
Assurance 

The system of control is generally sound however some of the expected controls are not in place and / or are not operating effectively therefore 
increasing the risk that the system will not meet it’s objectives.  Assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some 
areas of the system. 
 
Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 to 6 months; follow up of low priority recommendations 
will be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system. 

Limited 
Assurance 

Weaknesses in the design and / or inconsistent application of controls put the achievement of the organisation’s objectives at risk in many of 
the areas reviewed.  Assurance is limited to the few areas of the system where controls are in place and are operating effectively. 
 
Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will 
be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system. 

No 
Assurance 

No assurance can be given on the system of internal control as significant weaknesses in the design and / or operation of key controls could 
result or have resulted in failure to achieve the organisation’s objectives in the area reviewed.  
 
Follow up of high and medium priority recommendations only will be undertaken after 3 months; follow up of low priority recommendations will  
be undertaken as part of the next planned review of the system. 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

14 
 

 
 
 
Definition of Priority of Recommendations 

 

Priority Definition 

H Control weakness that has or is likely to have a significant impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives.   
 
Immediate implementation of the agreed recommendation is essential in order to provide satisfactory control of the serious risk(s) the system 
is exposed to. 
 

M Control weakness that has or is likely to have a medium impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives. 
 
Implementation of the agreed recommendation within 3 to 6 months is important in order to provide satisfactory control of the risk(s) the 
system is exposed to. 
 

L Control weakness that has a low impact upon the achievement of key system, function or process objectives. 
 
Implementation of the agreed recommendation is desirable as it will improve overall control within the system. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
  

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

15 
 

 
2021/22 Audit Reports 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Projects 2021-22 
 

Date 9th September 2021 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Head of Business Transformation, Organisational Development and Digital Strategy 

        Business Improvement Manager 
 
CC:  Executive Director of Resources and Section 151 Officer 
         Chief Executive  

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

16 
 

         

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 16 

2 Audit Scope and objective ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

3 Audit Opinion and Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 17 

4. Detailed Areas of Project Management where controls could be strengthened ............................................................................................................................................................. 19 

5. Independence and Ethics: ........................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 24 

APPENDIX A ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The audit of the projects process was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 
2021/22 which is currently in draft and waiting approval by the Governance and Standards Committee on 29th July 2021 and for Bromsgrove District Council which is 
currently in draft and waiting approval by the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on 22nd July 2021. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the 
projects as operated by Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council. 
 

1.2      This area of review is fundamental to Strategic Purpose delivery as it supports the achievement of the underlying priorities. 
 

1.3 There are no Service risks relevant to this review The Corporate risk relating to this review was: 
 

 COR10 - Decisions made to address financial pressures and implement new projects that are not informed by robust data and evidence 
 

1.4 There is an Inherent risk of fraud via the procurement that is required to deliver large scale projects if controls are not in place and working. 
 
1.5 This review was undertaken during the months of May and June 2021.  

 
 

    

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

17 
 

2 Audit Scope and objective 

 

2.1.    This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that the authorities have identified required outcomes of the Projects process both corporately and on an 
individual project basis, what success looks like, risks to the Councils and have used this to make an informed decision on the procedures required to achieve this.  

 
2.2.      The scope covered:    
 

 The expected outcomes for developing a corporate project register are understood and documented 

 Agreements are in place to confirm where corporate responsibility should sit regarding project management oversight and the ability to intervene if project 
timelines or spend are identified as not meeting documented targets/budgets. 

 Metrics are defined to monitor the effect of the corporate oversight, identify successes and failure in the delivery and monitoring of projects. 

 A developed project management framework exists, and the framework is communicated to and training provided on its use to service areas/project managers. 
Project Managers feel that they have the right skills/support/training and feel comfortable in their ability to lead and deliver the project. 

 Project management framework templates and guidance are followed. 

 Information generated via said framework provides Senior Management and subsequently Members with useful, accurate and timely information and is 
appropriate to the audience. 

 
2.3.    This reviewed covered the period from the date of the revised methodology 18th December 2019 to the current position as at 25thJune 2021. 

 
2.4.     This review did not provide an opinion on whether the business case and subsequent project was the best course of action for the  
           Authorities to realise financial, social or efficiency benefits. 
 

3 Audit Opinion and Executive Summary  

 
 

3.1  From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of moderate assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2 We have given an opinion of moderate assurance in this area because while we acknowledge that measures are going to be put in place to address this, currently 

there is no corporate oversight and monitoring of the projects and it is unknown how many projects are happening at any given time. While there is no corporate 
oversight projects are still being delivered within the various service areas. There is a framework in place for the more complex projects, but it is unclear the 
methodology being followed for other projects. While there is a project framework in place which acts as a control, there are areas which can be strengthened. As the 
corporate oversight and monitoring is not yet in place, assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system.  To aid 
Management to strengthen controls within these areas actions have been included in the table in section 4. 

 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

18 
 

 
3.3     The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 

 The Project Management Framework (Framework) provides the Council with a consistent, structured approach to the planning, implementation, management 
and delivery of projects 

 Detail within the Programme Board Highlight Report and use of RAG rating (Housing Project) highlighting the risks and achievement against the milestones.  

 Using the Issues and lessons learnt log during the project. 

 Continuing to manage projects with the disruption caused by the Covid-19 pandemic 
 
 
 
3.4     Current Position 

 
           The Senior Management Team have agreed to support a better corporate oversight and monitoring of projects after this gap in the process had been identified by the 

Head of Business Transformation.  
  

To help facilitate this the Business Improvement Manager is in the process of collating details of the current projects to enter on to draft corporate projects register. 
 
It is currently not clear which of these are actual projects and therefore must follow the ‘Project Management Framework’ (The framework is for in house project 
management) as testing has identified that some projects, are being deemed by project leads as service improvements, are not following the framework. Therefore, it is 
not clear how many ‘projects’ are currently in progress.  
 
This poses a risk in relation to budgets, places a pressure on resourcing in key areas such as finance, legal, IT, procurement if there is no co-ordination on the number, 
timing of the projects and a potential risk if the project constraints/risks are not being monitored and managed corporately.  
 
In addition to this ‘lessons learnt’ are not currently being reviewed and shared corporately meaning that improvements are not being used to make improvements to the 
process, identify training requirements and share learning.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 32

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

19 
 

4. Detailed Areas of Project Management where controls could be strengthened 

 
The issues identified during the review have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendation/challenge and Management Consideration and Action 
Points.  
 

Ref. Areas where controls could be strengthened Risk Recommendation/challenge Management Considerations & Action 
Points 

Corporate oversight and general understanding of the term ‘project’ 

1 Corporate understanding of the term ‘Project’ 

 
 
To understand corporately how a project is to be 
defined council wide. 
 
This may be a loose statement based on criteria such 
as type, size, value, complexity. 

Projects cannot be 
defined and identified 
and subsequently not 
recorded on an 
accurate and up to date 
project register. 
Leading to project 
overspends, extended 
duration/missing of 
milestones, penalties 
for missing legislative 
timelines. Poor 
transparency if project 
management 
information do not 
reach relevant Senior 
Management and 
Members. 

A simple flowchart/decision tree could be used 
to help officers identify what projects must 
follow the Project Management Framework 
and what projects such as service 
improvements fall outside the definition. This 
could also include where to go for advice if this 
is not easily determined. 
 
This could also help to determine which 
initiatives need to be included on the projects 
register and which may be overseen by 
Management within the individual Service area 
carrying out the initiative. 
 

The Project Management Framework will 
be amended to include a 
flowchart/decision tree to determine 
which projects require the use of the 
framework. Project criteria will be 
determined for inclusion in the 
framework.  
 
The flowchart/decision tree will also detail 
what categories, definitions, and 
exceptions will be monitored by the 
Corporate Management Team and which 
are service specific. 
 
 
Responsible Officer:  Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: December 2021 

2 Allocation of responsibility for Management 
oversight, monitoring and intervention to 
strengthen governance with an additional layer of 
control.  
 

 
There is currently no defined and understood corporate 
responsibilities in place for project management 
oversight and the ability to intervene if project timelines, 
risk or spend are identified as not meeting documented 
targets/budgets. 
 

Define and agree clear lines of accountability 
for corporate oversight within the authority in 
relation to oversight, monitoring and 
intervention 
 
Once there is allocated corporate responsibility 
for oversight and reporting with defined 
timescales. Decide types and level of 
intervention that could be required and develop 
processes to apply these in a uniformed and 
transparent way. 
 

The Project Management Framework will 
be amended to include clear allocation of 
responsibility, accountability, and 
reporting lines. 
 
 
The Business Improvement Manager 
working with CMT will identify projects to 
be corporately monitored, this will include 
how success will  be tracked and the use 
of reporting templates to achieve this. 
 

P
age 33

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

20 
 

 
 

Consider, identify and document the realistic 
number of projects that can be corporately 
monitored and define how the success of 
corporate oversight can be tracked, e.g., 
achievement of project following corporate 
intervention. 

Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: November 2021 
 
 

3 Recording, monitoring and reporting of Projects 
 

There is no system for the tracking of projects. 
 
Implementation of a fit for purpose system used 
corporately would enable the Council to track projects 
and their progress and can produce corporate reports 
that identify success and failures within individual 
projects, meaningful metrics on overall project 
achievement (percentage completed, time to deliver, 
trigger points, risks, flags etc.) 
 

 
 
Investigate to see if any of the systems 
currently operated by the council would be 
capable of operating a live system to be able 
to report at any time the progress of the project 
against the programme milestones, risks, 
budget. Using RAG ratings for ease of 
reporting and to use as a trigger / early 
warning system for reporting of any concerns 
or emerging risks.  

 
 
Existing corporate systems will be 
explored to understand if they are 
suitable to be used to track project 
progress. For example the 4Risk system. 
 
If existing systems are unsuitable 
consideration will be given to procuring 
an external system. This action will be 
dependent on the financial position at the 
time. 
 
Responsible Officer: 
Business Improvement Manager 
 
By: March 2022 

4 Project Risks 
 
Testing identified: 

 The issue register does not show the date of 
the update. All actions remain open  

 Risk Register. All risks recorded on this 
register are still shown as active from 2018 to 
date 

 There is no evidence as to learning from 
entries on the lessons learn register. 

 

The issue logs, lessons learnt log and risk logs are 
being completed and have highlighted areas of concern 
with regards to the Housing Project such as. 

 Procurement  

 Lack of policies held by the service, 

 
 
Corporate monitoring of the processes and 
subsequent risks is performed to identify if 
elements remain unresolved and intervention 
is required to close, mitigate risk or move 
forward with the project. For example, ensuring 
individual items on issues logs are acted upon. 
In addition, a review of project documents may 
identify risks not identified by the service area. 
 
 
 
 
Where there is a technical issue, this may be 
more appropriate for key stakeholders to report 

 
 
The inclusion of technical specialists at 
Project Board meetings or at CMT 
meetings along with the Project Manager 
will be implemented. 
 
Responsible Officer: Head of 
Transformation, OD & Digital Services 
By: December 2021  
 
 
 
 
The review of the Project Management 
Framework will outline the Senior User 

P
age 34

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

21 
 

 Delivery of the project and timescales during 
the pandemic 

 Resources stretched/left 

 Service review during the project which 
impacted on staff availability and staff moving 
from fixed term contracts to permanent roles 
within the authority. 

 Project Lead Reporting on behalf of all areas. 

 Senior Users and the Project Board 
accountable for reviewing risks throughout the 
project.  
 
 

Issues recorded on these logs are being discussed with 
Senior Users who are part of the project’s functions. 
Solutions are offered. However, the main issue is 
around resourcing.  
 

individually to the board so there is no 
misunderstanding of the issue. 
 
Currently as detailed in appendix A Project 
Functions within the PID. it appears the project 
Manager is responsible for reporting risks and 
issues, but should there also be accountability 
for reviewing risk by the Senior User and 
Project Board throughout the project? 

and Project Board responsibilities in 
relation to risks and issues and the 
actions needed to mitigate them. 
 
Responsible Officer:  
Business Improvement Manager  
By: December 2021 

5 Service Improvement Projects (projects excluded 
from the Prince 2 methodology) 
 
Testing identified: 
 

Projects listed on the draft corporate project register 
were found to have not followed the methodology as 
they were deemed as service improvements by the 
project leads. 
 

 

 
Decided as to what type of projects should 
have corporate oversight and monitoring and 
there is a clear process to follow for any 
projects that fall outside the project’s 
framework. Explore Microsoft projects 
application to see if this could be used for 
projects that fall outside the prince 2 
framework.  
 
Currently all projects are being managed in 
house. It would be advisable to consider what 
oversight the authority would have on projects 
led by 3rd parties and how the risk would be 
managed. 
 
 
 
 

 
Options for the approach to projects 
identified as being outside of the project 
framework will be included in the review 
of this document. Suitable option will be 
agreed with the CMT.  It is anticipated 
that reporting to CMT will be by exception 
via the service manager or project lead. 
 
 
Options to ensure feedback is received 
about the progress of externally managed 
partner projects will be included in the 
Project Management Framework after 
further discussion with the CMT. 
 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: December 2021 
 

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

22 
 

Training and Methodology 

6 Training  
 
Testing identified: 
 

Officers working on projects outside of the 
methodology felt comfortable leading the projects due 
to their technical knowledge and expertise of working 
within that service. These officers were not aware of 
the methodology.  
 

There are currently 14 staff across RBC and BDC that 
are recorded as have Prince2 Foundation on the 
central training record and 6 staff that have completed 
the Introduction to Project Management training 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Lack of trained staff 
results in projects 
stalling leading to 
overspends, delays and 
reputational damage if 
the authority is 
challenged on process. 
 
Lack of a robust audit 
trail could lead to the 
Authority not being able 
to respond to 
challenges and 
safeguard officers 
reputation should a 
decision be challenged 
at a later date. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
There is corporate oversight to ensure that 
there is sufficient staff that have the skills 
needed to lead on complex projects. Consider 
skills needed for projects outside of the 
framework to ensure Officers are competent to 
deliver the project/service improvement in line 
with corporate policy. In service areas where 
there are no staff trained on Prince 2 ensure 
there is policy and procedures in place and 
technical officers have capacity to take time 
away from their day job to work on the project 
when considering resources needed for the 
project. 
 
Use the information within the lesson learnt 
and feedback from the project lead to look for 
ways to improve the process and ensure 
officers working on projects are kept up to date 
with any learning and changes to the process. 
 

 
 
 
Heads of Service will arrange for some of 
their teams to undertake project 
management training in order to improve 
and increase the project management 
skills within the organisation. 
 
Responsible officer: CMT and Business 
Improvement Manager 
By: March 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Following the amendments to the Project 
Management Framework, the Business 
Improvement Team will provide and 
facilitate training sessions to service 
managers.  This will include the 
importance and use of all elements of the 
framework including: issue logs, lessons 
learnt and risk logs and the actions 
required for success. 
 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: February 2022 

7 Methodology, Record Keeping and Resourcing 
 
Testing identified; 
 

 A Business Case ‘Improvement to HRA 
through Rent Management System’ which 
was approved dated July 2020 on the 

 
 
 
 
Resilience is needed within project team 
should officers resign or transfer to other 
positions within the council, or not be available 

 
 
 
 
The option to nominate a deputy project 
manager will be included in the review of 
the Project Management Framework.  

P
age 36

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

23 
 

document but still shown as draft. To prevent 
any confusion, documents which are 
approved should be complete and changed 
to Final.    

 Approval for the business case was not held 
within the audit trail by the project lead. To 
safeguard the project lead it would be 
advisable to hold a copy of approval (where 
they are not recorded within minutes) for the 
various stages of the project in a retrievable 
form such as an email. This is to prevent any 
misunderstand or future challenges over 
decisions made. 
 
   

 Within the Project Board Project Initiation 
Document (PID) there were names against 
suppliers missing.  For resilience documents 
should be fully completed or an audit trail if 
information provided at a later stage so that 
information can be retrieved within a timely 
manner should the project lead not be 
available.   

 Within the framework there is a Data 
Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) 
process to evidence compliance with the 
requirements of the General Data Protection 
Regulations 2018. The testing established 
that Data Protection assessment document 
was still in draft. The framework suggests this 
needs to be completed if you are starting a 
project especially when they will be new 
systems.  

 

for work due to other commitments/illness. 
This is especially important for complex 
projects where individual knowledge is gained 
on project elements that may not be easily or 
quickly transferred. 
 
 
 
 
A process to evidence approval of the 
Business Case and Project Board Project 
Initiation Document (PID and decision making. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Maintaining an accurate audit trail held 
centrally and available to the corporate team 
will help to understand the decisions that have 
been made up to that point and the progress to 
date. Consideration could be given to a deputy 
project manager for complex and long projects 
to improve resilience and avoid a potential 
single point of failure. 
 
The audit trail must contain evidence of 
approvals/decision making in the event of a 
challenge and to safeguard the officer. 
 
. 

Particularly for high value, complex 
projects. This will be dependent on 
budget and resource constraints. 
 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: December 2022 
 
The need to evidence Business case and 
PID approval will be actioned with 
amendments to the Project Management 
Framework, as well as covered in the 
training sessions. 
 
Responsible Officer: 
Business Improvement Manager 
By: December 2021 
 
See point 3 regarding the use of a 
technical system to store project data. 
 
Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: March 2022 
 
 
 
 

8 Transparency 

 
Reference within the methodology for committee 
reporting on projects was not identified. 

 
Clear process in place to define what project 
information is reported to members routinely 
and additionally an escalation process for 
when project information needs to reported to 

 
This process will be defined in the review 
of the Project Management Framework in 
consultation with the CMT. 
 

P
age 37

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

24 
 

5. The way forward 

 

 Decide on what projects follow the Prince 2 Framework and who will decide this. 

 How projects will be prioritised. 

 A realistic number of projects to deliver and monitor at any one time.  

 There is the resourcing and the knowledge within Redditch and Bromsgrove Councils to oversee and monitor projects. 

 There are the skills and resources within the authority to provide the technical expertise needed for longer and complex projects and when multiple projects are 
running at the same time. 

 Allocated corporate responsibility for oversight and reporting with defined responsibilities. 

 A system that captures projects, is live and up to date, can be used to monitor the milestones, identifies emerging risks and can be used to report to the various 
audience. 

 Agree triggers that require escalation from corporate monitoring i.e., Overspend budget, missed timescales. 

 What intervention will there be from senior management. 

 Risks, overspends on budgets, programme milestones not met are reported and transparent. 

 Link to the Risk Management Strategy and risk registers (4risk system) 

 Audit trails including approvals and decisions held centrally. 

 Post evaluation of the project to apply lessons learnt. 

6. Independence and Ethics: 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are 
required to report. 

 WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and able to 
express an objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 
 
  

members due to its nature to ensure 
transparency. 

Responsible Officer: Business 
Improvement Manager 
 
By: December 2022 

P
age 38

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

25 
 

2020/21 Audit Reports.   
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Council Tax 2020-21 
 

Date:  31st March 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Financial Support Services Manager 
       Head of Finance and Customer Service 

 

Cc:  Chief Executive 
       Executive Director S151 

P
age 39

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

26 
 

  

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. The audit of the Council Tax was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 2020/21 
as approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the Audit, Standards and 
Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the Council Tax as operated by Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove 
District Council. 
 

1.2. Link to Corporate Prioritise and Objectives:  
BDC Ensure People get the benefits they need - Work and Financial Independence BDC Plan 2019-2023 
BDC Financial Stability - BDC Plan Prioritise 2019 - 2023 
RBC Plan 2020-2024 Priorities Financial Stability, High Quality Services 
RBC Work and Financial Independence - Ensure People get the benefits they need Plan 2020-2024 
 

1.3. The following entries on the corporate risk register for Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council are relevant to this review: 
 

 COR11: Managing the impact of national changes- financial/social economic or environmental which may have a detrimental impact on service delivery or quality (e.g. 
Brexit/Universal Credit) 

 COR13:  IT systems and infrastructure has a major failure. 
 

P
age 40

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20Council%20Tax%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

27 
 

The following entries on the service risk register are relevant to this review: 
 

 REV 3 Failure of support/availability of key systems finance and resources   replies upon 

 REV  4 Failure to effectively manage change. 

 REV 7   Performance Information data is not robust 

 REV 11 Reduced collection rates 

 REV 12 Failure to meet audit requirements 
 

 
1.4. This review was undertaken during the month of November 2020.              

 

2. Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1. This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that the new collection methods for collecting Council Tax income for the two   authorities up to the issue of the 
summons and the risk to the Authorities with regards to Council Tax debt recovery due to the impact of the Coronavirus has been fully considered. 
 

2.2. The scope covered:    

 The methods of collection are working / fit for purpose the methods of collection are working / fit for purpose. 

 The impact of Covid-19 on the recovery process and the strategy and plan in place to deal with the net impact on debt for the suspended period. 

 The recovery process post lock down. 

 A review of the updated position in relation to the 2019/20 audit recommendations  
 

2.3. This review covered the period from 1st April 2020 to the 27th November 2020. 
 

2.4.  This review did not cover 

 Registration processes and the identification of new dwellings 

 User Profiling 

 The processing of payments and refunds. 

 Procedures for processing Council Tax information, including the setting up of new customer accounts and timely and accurate billing is taking place. 

 The application of discounts and exemptions on properties, and the respective billing amounts. 
 
 
 

P
age 41

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

28 
 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of moderate assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2. We have given an opinion of moderate assurance in this area because there is a sound system of control in place but that some of the expected controls are not in 

place and / or are not operating effectively therefore assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system. 
 

3.3. It has been noted that the dashboard collection measures are subject to a revision and requests have been made by the service for the measures and supporting 
measures to be updated to enable this information to be logged.  
 

3.4. The service is aware of the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Crisis Moratorium) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 due to 
come into force in May 2021.  
 

3.5. The corporate and service risk register contains identified risks for the Revenues Service. The monitoring of these risks is carried out on a monthly basis within the 
service performance report and annually against the 4risk system.  However, the footprint within the system does not identify when the risk was last reviewed. 

 
 
3.6. The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 
 

 A new online portal which customers can apply to set up a payment arrangement which, if successful, has the potential to reduce the number of phone calls 
into the service. 

 
 

3.7. The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 

number 

Previous Audit 2019/20 Follow Up   

Recovery of Prior Debt (Follow Up) Medium 1 

New Matters Arising 2020/21    

Strategic Recovery plans High 2 

Process and procedures Medium 3 

P
age 42

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

29 
 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 
 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan 

Issues brought forward from previous 2019/20 audit 

1 M Recovery of prior debt (Follow Up) 
 

The action to address this finding 
within the 2019/20 audit is still 
outstanding due to other priorities 
during the pandemic. 
 

A review of resources for recovery of 
Council Tax and Non-Domestic rates 
will be completed within the first 6 
months of 2020.  
 
As part of this review there will be a 
challenge to the existing Recovery 
Policy and Debt Collection strategies.  
 
This review will ensure that more 
thorough guidance is provided to 
teams in relation to actions for 
collection of debt, methods of 
enforcement and where applicable 
write off 
 
Implementation Date: 

30 September 2020 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
Loss of potential income to the 
authority due to limited recovery 
on aged debt.  
 
Adverse collection rates leading 
to reputational damage and 
financial hardship. 

 
 
 
To incorporate into the service 
business, plan a clear policy as 
to how the Council will deal with 
aged debt and the way it is to 
be managed going forward to 
maximise income and take 
timely action. 

 

Responsible Manager: 
 
The review of resources and 
revision to both the recovery policy 
and debt collection strategies was 
delayed as the Revenue Services 
Team were tasked with the delivery 
of the Government’s Covid-19 
business support programme.   
 
There was insufficient capacity to 
both deliver the essential business 
support and to complete the review. 
 
Resource requirements for the 
service and development of 
enhanced debt strategies  
Will be completed in final quarter of 
2020/21 and first quarter of 2021/22 
 
Implementation Date: 
 
30th June 2021 
 
 

P
age 43

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

30 
 

New matters arising 

2 H Strategic Recovery Plans 

Corporate 
While there is a corporate plan in draft 
to address recovery and restoration 
for Redditch Borough Council and an 
approved corporate plan for 
Bromsgrove District Council the 
actions for the Revenues Team are 
ongoing with no clear milestones as to 
when these actions will be completed.  
 
Revenues Service 
The service does have plans on how 
to address the impact of the 
Coronavirus Pandemic. However, at 
the time of the audit the service was in 
the response stage and was 
prioritising issuing grants as instructed 
by Central Government. Therefore, at 
this stage of the audit, there was no 
written detailed business plan/action 
plan which addressed this including 
the finer detail of prioritising debt 
recovery, balancing resources and 
resilience within the team, recovery 
during further lock downs or being 
placed in higher tiers over the short, 
medium and long term.  
 
 

 
 
Failure to have Service Business 
Plans in place has the potential 
for loss of Council Tax income 
and leave the service open for 
challenge. 
 
By not having plans in place 
there is less buy in from the staff 
and a lack of transparency 
regarding deliverables. This 
could result in a lack of direction, 
actions taking longer and the 
potential for further impact on 
recovery.  

 
 
A service business plan is 
developed to make clear and 
transparent to all how the 
Service will manage recovery 
going forwards, including, how 
you are dealing with those who 
have lost jobs, been furloughed 
or on lower incomes. Where 
recovery has not had any action 
for a period (including aged 
debt), customers will need to be 
informed recovery is re-
commencing.  A plan will also 
be required to balance 
resources with the knowledge 
and expertise required. Once 
plans are in place they should 
be updated and monitored on a 
regularly basis. 

Responsible Manager: 
 
The service is completing a review 
of resources as noted in 
recommendation one. 
 
The development of a revised 
service plan, incorporating a 
recovery plan will be completed as 
part of the implementation of 
recommendation one. 
 
Implementation Date: 
 
30th June 2021 

3 M Process and Procedures 
 

Changes to the usual recovery 
process were forced upon the service 
due to the pandemic and recovery 
was paused from March 2020 to 
August 2020, due to the Courts being 
closed. During this time the service 

 
 
Failure to have a documented 
procedure for the collection and 
recovery during the pandemic 
could result in challenge for the 
authorities and reputational 
damage if customers are treated 

 
 
Document the plan/timeline to 
ensure that the balance 
between any back log of 
recovery and prioritisation of 
resource is achieved.   
 

Responsible Manager: 
 
The actions highlighted within this 
recommendation are completed on 
a monthly basis through 
 
Cross Service Meetings. 
Monitoring of pass backs 

P
age 44

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

31 
 

was unable to proceed past the final 
reminder. There is no evidence that 
the usual recovery process has been 
amended to reflect that there was no 
recovery action during the first 
lockdown and what action had been 
agreed with staff regarding re-
profiling, deferring payments and 
special arrangements.    
  
Customer Service Staff were brought 
in to assist the recovery team with 
taking phone calls from customers 
regarding reminder letters. While this 
has been a support to the business, 
staff had to be trained and any 
queries that could not be answered, 
referred to the recovery team.  
 

Due to the small number of staff within 
the Recovery Team, there has not 
always been resourcing to cover their 
role when not available. For example, 
attending Court. 
 

unfairly or indirect discrimination 
takes place. 

Review success of the 
temporary procedures e.g. call 
backs to ensure there are no 
missed opportunities to develop 
the current process. 
 
As part of the business plan, 
review skills within the team to 
ensure there is enough 
resilience and they are 
deployed in the most efficient 
manner. 
 
Gain feedback from Customer 
Service on the process. Ensure 
that Customer Service staff 
have the relevant knowledge 
and expertise to add value for 
the service and provide written 
instruction to ensure everyone 
is treated equally. 

Review and Provision of training. 
 
Further steps will be taken during 
first quarter of 2021/22 to provide 
additional training and support to 
customer services teams 
 
 
Implementation Date: 
 
30th June 2021 

 

5. Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms to the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and able to express an 
objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

 

P
age 45

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

32 
 

 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

NNDR 2020-21 
 

Date:  31st March 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Financial Support Services Manager 
       Head of Finance and Customer Services  
 

Cc:  Chief Executive 
       Executive Director S151 

P
age 46

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

33 
 

 
   

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1. The audit of the NNDR was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 2020/21 as 
approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the Audit, Standards and 
Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the NNDR as operated by Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove 
District Council. 
 

1.2. Link to Corporate Prioritise and Objectives:  
BDC Ensure People get the benefits they need - Work and Financial Independence BDC Plan 2019-2023 
BDC Financial Stability - BDC Plan Prioritise 2019 - 2023 
RBC Plan 2020-2024 Priorities Financial Stability, High Quality Services 
RBC Work and Financial Independence - Ensure People get the benefits they need Plan 2020-2024 
 

1.3. The following entries on the corporate risk register for Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council are relevant to this review: 
 

 COR11: Managing the impact of national changes- financial/social economic or environmental which may have a detrimental impact on service delivery or quality (e.g. 
Brexit/Universal Credit) 

 COR13:  IT systems and infrastructure has a major failure. 

P
age 47

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20Audit%20Report%20NNDR%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

34 
 

 
The following entries on the service risk register are relevant to this review: 

 

 REV 3 Failure of support/availability of key systems finance and resources replies upon 

 REV  4 Failure to effectively manage change. 

 REV 7   Performance Information data is not robust 

 REV 11 Reduced collection rates 

 REV 12 Failure to meet audit requirements 
 

 
1.4. This review was undertaken by during the month of November and December 2020.              

 

2. Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1. This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that the new collection methods for collecting NNDR income for the two authorities up to the issue of the 
summons and the risk to the Authorities with regards to NNDR debt recovery due to the impact of the Coronavirus has been fully considered. 
 

2.2. The scope covered:    

 The methods of collection are working / fit for purpose  

 The impact of Covid-19 on the recovery process and the strategy and plan in place to deal with the net impact on debt for the suspended period. 

 The recovery process post lock down. 

 Pre and Post distribution checks have been undertaken on the business support and discretionary Grants. 

 A review of the updated position in relation to the 2019/20 audit recommendations. 
 
  

 
 

2.3. This review covered the period from 1st April 2020 to the 14th December 2020. 
 

2.4.  This review did not cover 

 The processing of payments and refunds.  

 The NNDR registration process 

 Checking the accuracy of the awards and correct amount of relief awarded 

 Debt recovery including and past the point of summons 

P
age 48

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

35 
 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of moderate assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2. We have given an opinion of moderate assurance in this area because there is a sound system of control in place but that some of the expected controls are not in 

place and / or are not operating effectively therefore assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system. 
 

3.3. Covid-19 Grants Local Authorities were instructed by Central Government to pay out the grants as quickly as possible and this has continued with the other grant 
issues to date. There have been multiple grant schemes following each other giving little time to establish robust anti-fraud measures from the start and Central 
Government have accepted that there will be error and fraud, due to the priority to get the grants paid to the rate payers quickly. 
 

3.4. It has been noted that the dashboard collection measures are subject to a revision and requests have been made by the service for the measures and supporting 
measures to be updated to enable this information to be logged.  
 

3.5. The service is aware of the Debt Respite Scheme (Breathing Space Moratorium and Mental Health Crisis Moratorium) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 due to 
come into force in May 2021.  
 

3.6. The corporate and service risk register contains identified risks for the Revenues Service. The monitoring of these risks is carried out on a monthly basis within the 
service performance report and annually against the 4risk system. However, the footprint within the system does not identify when the risk was last reviewed. 

 
3.7. The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 

number 

Previous Audit 2019/20 Follow Up   

Recovery of Prior Debt (Follow Up) Medium 1 

New Matters Arising 2020/21    

Strategic Recovery plans High 2 

Process and Procedures Medium 3 

P
age 49

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

36 
 

4.  Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 
 
 
 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
action plan 

Issues brought forward from previous 2019/20 audit 

1 M Recovery of prior debt (Follow Up) 
 

The action to address this finding 
within the 2019/20 audit is still 
outstanding due to other priorities 
during the pandemic. 
 

A review of resources for recovery of 
Council Tax and Non-Domestic rates 
will be completed within the first 6 
months of 2020.  
 
As part of this review there will be a 
challenge to the existing Recovery 
Policy and Debt Collection strategies.  
 
This review will ensure that more 
thorough guidance is provided to 
teams in relation to actions for 
collection of debt, methods of 
enforcement and where applicable 
write off 
 
Implementation Date: 
 

30 September 2020 
 

 
 
 
Loss of potential income to the 
authority due to limited recovery 
on aged debt.  
 
Adverse collection rates leading 
to reputational damage and 
financial hardship. 

 
 
 
To incorporate into the service 
business, plan a clear policy as 
to how the Council will deal with 
aged debt and the way it is to 
be managed going forward to 
maximise income and take 
timely action. 

Responsible Manager: 
Implementation Date: 
 
The review of resources and 
revision to both the recovery policy 
and debt collection strategies was 
delayed as the Revenue Services 
Team were tasked with the delivery 
of the Government’s Covid-19 
business support programme.   
 
There was insufficient capacity to 
both deliver the essential business 
support and to complete the review. 
 
Resource requirements for the 
service and development of 
enhanced debt strategies  
Will be completed in final quarter of 
2020/21 and first quarter of 2021/22 
 
 

P
age 50

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

37 
 

New matters arising 

2 H Strategic Recovery Plans 

Corporate 
While there is a corporate plan in draft 
to address recovery and restoration 
for Redditch Borough Council and an 
approved corporate plan for 
Bromsgrove District Council the 
actions for the Revenues Team with 
regards to business rates are ongoing 
with no clear milestones as to when 
these actions will be completed.  
 
Revenues Service 
The service does have plans on how 
to address the impact of the 
Coronavirus Pandemic. However, at 
the time of the audit the service was in 
the response stage and was 
prioritising issuing grants as instructed 
by Central Government. Therefore, at 
this stage of the audit, there was no 
written detailed business plan/action 
plan which addressed this including 
the finer detail of prioritising debt 
recovery, balancing resources and 
resilience within the team, recovery 
during further lock downs or being 
placed in higher tiers over the short, 
medium and long term.  
 
 
 

 
 
Failure to have Service Business 
Plans in place has the potential 
for loss of NNDR income and 
leave the service open for 
challenge. 
 
By not having plans in place 
there is the potential for less buy 
in from the staff and a lack of 
transparency in regard to 
deliverables. This could result in 
a lack of direction, actions taking 
longer and the potential for 
further impact on recovery.  

 
 
A service business plan is 
developed to make clear and 
transparent to all how the 
Service will manage recovery 
going forwards, including, how 
you are dealing with those who 
have reduced profit margins, 
reduced opening. Where 
recovery has not had any action 
for a period (including aged 
debt), customers will need to be 
informed recovery is re-
commencing.  A plan will also 
be required to balance 
resources with the knowledge 
and expertise required. Once 
plans are in place they should 
be updated and monitored on a 
regularly basis and 
communicated to the team. 

Responsible Manager: 
Implementation Date: 
 
The service is completing a review 
of resources as noted in 
recommendation one. 
 
The development of a revised 
service plan, incorporating a 
recovery plan will be completed as 
part of the implementation of 
recommendation one. 
 
Implementation Date: 
 
30th June 2021 

3 M Process and Procedures 
 

Changes to the usual recovery 
process were forced upon the service 
due to the pandemic and recovery 
was paused from March 2020 to 

 
 
Failure to have a documented 
procedure for the collection and 
recovery during the pandemic 
could result in challenge for the 

 
 
Document the plan/timeline to 
ensure that the balance 
between any back log of 
recovery and prioritisation of 

The actions highlighted within this 
recommendation are completed on 
a monthly basis through 
 
Cross Service Meetings. 
Monitoring of pass backs 

P
age 51

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

38 
 

August 2020, due to the Courts being 
closed. During this time the service 
was unable to proceed past the final 
reminder. There is no evidence that 
the usual recovery process has been 
amended to reflect that there was no 
recovery action during the first 
lockdown and what action had been 
agreed with staff regarding re-
profiling, deferring payments and 
special arrangements.    
  
Customer Service Staff were brought 
in to assist the recovery team with 
taking phone calls from customers 
regarding reminder letters. While this 
has been a support to the business, 
staff had to be trained and any 
queries that could not be answered, 
referred to the recovery team.  
 
 
 

 

authorities and reputational 
damage if customers are treated 
unfairly or indirect discrimination 
takes place. 

resource is achieved.   
 
Review success of the 
temporary procedures e.g. call 
backs, to ensure there are no 
missed opportunities to develop 
the current process. 
 
As part of the business plan, 
review skills within the team to 
ensure there is enough 
resilience and they are 
deployed in the most effective 
manner. 
 
Obtain feedback from Customer 
Services on the process. 
Ensure that Customer Services 
staff have the relevant 
knowledge and expertise to add 
value for the service and 
provide written instruction, 
where necessary, to ensure 
everyone is treated equally and 
there is a consistent message. 

Review and Provision of training. 
 
Further steps will be taken during 
first quarter of 2021/22 to provide 
additional training and support to 
customer services teams 
 
 
Implementation Date: 
 
30th June 2021 

5. Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms to the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and express an objective 
opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

  

P
age 52

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

39 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Benefits 2020/21 
 

05/03/2020 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Customer Support Manager 
       Head of Finance and Customer Services 
       Chief Executive 
 
   
 

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

40 
 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

The audit of the Benefits system was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 
2020/21 approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the Audit, Standards 
and Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk based systems audit of the Benefits system as operated by Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
1.1. This review relates to the strategic purposes of: 
 

 BDC Plan 2019-23: Strategic Purpose - Work and Financial Independence. Priorities - Financial Stability. 

 RBC: Plan 2020-24: Strategic Purposes - Aspiration, Work & Financial independence 
 

1.2. The following Service risks were relevant to this review: 
 

 BEN 1 Fail to adequately resource the service to meet the demand. 

 BEN 3 Impact of Welfare Reform Act 

 BEN 4 Impact of Introduction of Local Council Tax Scheme 

 BEN 6 Impact of ELF Scheme 

 BEN 7 Benefits Subsidy 

 BEN 9 Failure to meet audit requirements 

 BEN 10 Risk Based Verification 

 BEN 11 Failure of Corporate Fraud and Compliance Team 

P
age 54

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Benefits%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

41 
 

 REV 6 Fail to make a timely decision (political direction) to manage changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme 

 REV 9 Impact of introduction of Local Council Tax Scheme 
 
1.3. This review was undertaken during the month(s) of November and December. 

  

2. Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1. This review has been undertaken to provide assurance on the procedures, policies and performance management in relation to the Benefits system with focus on the 
impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic and the subsequent shift to agile working and the digital by default approach, Test and trace payments and the Housing Benefit 
Award Accuracy Initiative. The progress on the development of the new Council Tax Reduction Scheme in preparation for April 2021 was also reviewed. 

 
2.2. The scope covered:    

 

 A review of the updated position in relation to the 2019/20 audit recommendations. 

 Compliance with internal processes and external legislation to allow the prompt and accurate processing of new claims and changes of circumstance. 

 The process of recovery, including the classification of overpayments and its effect on subsidy. 

 Progress on new Council Tax Reduction Scheme in preparation for April 2021. 

 Test and Trace Payments 

 Housing Benefit Award Accuracy Initiative. 

 Impact of Covid-19, agile working and digital by default approach. 
 
2.3. This review covered the period from April 2020 to the date of the audit. 

 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of significant assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2. We have given an opinion of significant assurance in this area because there is a generally sound system of internal control in place designed to meet the 

organisation’s objectives.  However isolated weaknesses in the design of controls or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas put the 
achievement of a limited number of system objectives at risk. 

 
 

P
age 55

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

42 
 

3.3. The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 
 

 Compliance with external and internal legislation for prompt and accurate processing of new claims and change of circumstances 

 Monitoring of subsidy 

 Progress on the new Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2021/22 

 Test and Trace payments 

 Progress on the Housing Benefit Accuracy Award Initiative 

 Adaption to Covid-19 and agile working. 
 
 
 
3.4. The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 
number 

Reconciliations Medium 1 

P
age 56

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

43 
 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response: 

Issues brought forward from previous audit 

2 M Reconciliations 

 
Ongoing pressures on the Finance 
team due to the Covid-19 pandemic 
has meant the finding in the 2019/20 
Benefits report has not been 
adequately addressed. It should be 
noted progress has been made on 
ensuring a check is performed that 
confirms the ledger figures are 
accurate with all weeks recorded. 
 
However, the reconciliation between 
the BACS documents and the 
Benefits system in the original finding 
was still not being undertaken. 
Discussions have been held and the 
method of how this reconciliation can 
be performed has now been identified 
with an aim to implement by January 
2021. 
 
 

 
 
There is the potential for errors, 
omissions and fraud to go 
undetected. 

 
 
Reconciliations are performed 
for each benefit payment run, 
reconciling the output report to 
the BACS payment file to 
identify any discrepancies. 

 
 
Management Response: As per 
the audit findings, the impact of 
covid, particularly in this area, 
has had a major impact on the 
teams ability to implement the 
recommendation. As the situation 
is “stabilising” now with the 
workloads and demands these 
will be put in place and 
undertaken. 
 
Implementation Date: 30/04/2021 
 
 
Responsible Manager: 
Customer Support Manager in 
conjunction with Finance 

New matters arising 

No matters to raise from the work undertaken in 2020/21 

 
 
 
 

P
age 57

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

44 
 

5. Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms to the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and are able to express an 
objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

 
 
  

P
age 58

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

45 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Creditors 2020/21 
 

27th April 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Head of Finance and Customer Services 

Senior Payments Officer 
 
Cc:   Executive Director of Resources and S151 Officer 
         Chief Executive 
 
 

P
age 59

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

46 
 

   
 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 

1. Introduction 

 

1.1 The audit of the Creditors System was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 
2020/21 as approved by the Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the Audit, Standards and 
Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk-based systems audit of the creditors system as operated by Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council. 
 

1.2 This review does not relate directly to the strategic purposes but does underpin them as it is the system that is used to make payments for goods and services.            
 

1.3         There were no risks on the Corporate Risk Register relevant to this review. The following Service Risks that were relevant to this review: 
 

 117 - Creditor Payments - unable to make payments to creditors due to failure of system or printer. 

 119 - Failure to manage cash flow for Redditch Borough Council - unable to pay creditors and salaries 

 189 - Failure to manage budgets 
 
1.4 There is a potential risk of fraud in this area in the form of invoice fraud, insider fraud, phishing E-mails.  

 
1.5 This review was undertaken during the months of December 2020 and January 2021. 

P
age 60

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/BDC%20%20RBC%20Creditors%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

47 
 

2. Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1  This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that that controls and risk management arrangements are in place and working to mitigate the risks known to 
exist within any creditor system/process 

 
2.2 The scope of the audit was: 
 

 Due diligence processes for new creditors 

 Creditor maintenance (verification of amendments) 

 Uptake and avoidance of creditor rewards and penalties 

 Purchase order process 

 Invoice payment process 

 BACS payments 

 Creditor reconciliations 

 Implementation of Technology One 

 Contractor payments made during Covid-19. 
 
2.3 The review covered the period from April 2020 to 31st January 2021 
 
2.4 This review did not cover the tendering of contracts under the Procurement Code. 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of Significant Assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2. We have given an opinion of significant assurance in this area because there is a sound system of control in place, but some our testing has identified some isolated 

weaknesses in the design of controls and / or inconsistent application of controls in a small number of areas. 
 
3.3. The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 
 

 Setting up of new suppliers and amendments to suppliers’ details 

 There is a reconciliation with the main ledger at the end of each year 

 Invoice payments process 
 

 

P
age 61

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

48 
 

3.4  It should be noted that: 
 

 Authorisation levels are being streamlined within the new Finance system. There will be less levels of authorisation and these will be aligned to an officer’s role 
profile rather than being individually assigned. 

 There were no advanced payments made to contractors in relation to the Covid-19 pandemic 

 The testing was undertaken on the Efin system which on 8th February 2021 was replaced with the Technology One system. However Internal audit did ascertain 
that there were controls in place to ensure the accurate transfer of data from the old to the new system.  

 
3.5      The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 

number 

Disputed Invoices and Late Payments/ Raising of orders Medium 1 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan 

New matters arising 

1 M Disputed Invoices and Late Payments/ 
Raising of orders 
 

 
Under the current system invoices can go 
to services prior to being passed onto the 
payments team. It is therefore not easy for 
the date of receipt of the invoice or for 
disputes dealt with by services to be noted 
on the system. 
 
With relation to raising of orders testing 

 
 
 
 
Financial loss and 
reputational 
damage if 
suppliers are paid 
late. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
With the introduction of a new system it is the 
ideal time to insist that all invoices are sent to 
a central location e.g. PO Box Number and 
must be addressed to the payments team.  
 
This will allow for tracking of late receipt of 
invoices, notes on the system on resolution of 
disputed invoice and monitoring of prompt 
payment of invoices to ensure that the council 

 
 
 
Responsible Manager: 
 

Senior Payments Officer 
 

Agreed. The suggested process 
is the one that has been built 
into the new system. Training is 
being rolled out to managers on 
this new process to ensure 

P
age 62

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

49 
 

5. Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and able to express an 
objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

 
 
 
  

found that: 
 
BDC - 4 out of 70 invoices had the order 
raised after the invoice date and 1 out of 
70 where the invoice for Agency workers 
had no order raised. 
 
RBC - 6 out of 70 invoices had the order 
raised after the invoice date. 
 
However, the old system would not allow 
for a purchase order to be amended if it did 
not match the Invoice and so a new order 
was created effectively losing the audit trail 
and the original date the order was raised. 
 

does not incur interest penalties for late 
payments. 
 
 
It is also the ideal time to clearly define those 
supplies that must have an order raised and 
those that are exempt.  
 
As the process of raising an order commits 
expenditure against budgets the need for 
orders to be raised prior to receipt of the 
goods/service must be monitored to ensure 
that this happens making budget monitoring 
much more efficient and meaningful. 

compliance with it moving 
forwards. 
 
Implementation date: 
 

August 2021 
 

P
age 63

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

50 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Main Ledger 2020/21 
 

27th April 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Head of Finance and Customer Services  
 

Cc:   Executive Director of Resources and S151 Officer 
         Chief Executive 

        
 

P
age 64

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

51 
 

 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The audit of the Main Ledger system was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough Council for 
2020/21 approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the Audit, Standards 
and Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk based systems audit of the Main Ledger system as operated by Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council. 

 
1.2       This review does not relate directly to the strategic purposes. However, this system records all financial transactions of the Councils and therefore underpins all 

strategic purposes. 
 

 
1.3   There were no risks on the Corporate Risk register that related to this review. The following Service risk was relevant to this review: 

  FIN1 - Fail to provide adequate support to managers to manage their budgets  
 
 

1.4 There is a potential for fraud regarding the management override of controls and classification of Revenue/ Capital expenditure. 
 
 
1.5 This review was undertaken during the month March 2021  

P
age 65

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/Final%20%20Main%20Ledger%20Report%202021.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

52 
 

2 Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1 This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that the main ledger provides Management with data that is valid, accurate, complete and timely for decision 
making and that savings and revenue budgets are monitored and that it was accurate to the point of switch over to the new ERP system. 

 
2.2 The scope covered:    

 

 Reconciliations, bank, accounts receivable, payroll, pensions, accounts payable etc. are taking place and on a timely basis 

 Suspense accounts are being monitored and cleared 

 Journal authorisations, backing papers and reasonableness  

 Savings and Revenue Budget Monitoring  
 
2.3 This reviewed covered the period from 1st April 2020 to 28th February 2021 

 
2.4 This review did not cover the new finance system and does not look at the process for compiling the Statement of Accounts as this is an External Audit function. 

3 Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1 From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of moderate assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2  We have given an opinion of moderate assurance in this area because there is a sound system of control in place but some of the expected controls are not in place 

and / or are not operating effectively therefore assurance can only be given over the effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system.   
 
3.3 The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 
 

 There is a budget setting timetable and budgets are sent to Members for challenge 

 There is a clearly identified savings programme 

 Budgets are monitored and quarterly monitoring reports are presented to Members 

 There was a check in place to ensure that data had been transferred from the old to the new finance system accurately 
 
3.4 The new system can provide the opportunity to improve the process around journals. Whereas the supporting documents have been retained by the individual raising 

the journal there is now the opportunity to either attach these to the system or for them to be held centrally. 
 
 
3.5       The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 

P
age 66

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

53 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4 Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 

number 

Reconciliations Medium 1 

Suspense Accounts Medium 2 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response and 
Action Plan 

New matters arising 

1 M Reconciliations 
 

At the time of the audit reconciliations 
were not all up to date and some had 
not been completed at all e.g. Payroll.   
 

This means that any miscoding's or 
items not posted to the ledger are not 
identified at an early stage. 
 
IA acknowledges that with the 
introduction of the new integrated 
Finance system that this should 
improve however the reconciliations 
within the old system need to be 
finalised first to ensure that the year-
end Statement of Accounts data is 
correctly stated. 
 
 
 

 
 
Challenge, reputation damage 
and financial loss if decisions are 
being made on inaccurate and 
poor quality data. 

 
 
Reconciliations are be kept up 
to date and produced on a 
monthly basis. 
 
 
This will ensure the quality of 
the data within the main ledger 
which is used for management 
decision making. 
 
It will also help with the Year-
end compilation of the 
Statement of Accounts and 
provide better working papers 
for External Audit. 

 
 
Responsible Manager: 
 

Head of Finance and Customer 
Services 
 
Implementation date:  
 

The reconciliations are now up to 
date. Going forwards, the new 
system will enable the 
reconciliations to be done on a 
regular basis. This will be fully 
functional going forwards by August 
2021 

P
age 67

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

54 
 

5. Independence and Ethics: 
 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and able to express an 
objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

  

2 M Suspense Accounts 
 

Testing of suspense accounts found 
that these are not regularly monitored 
and cleared and therefore it is hard to 
ascertain exactly what the remaining 
balance on the account relates to. 
 
 

 
 
Challenge and reputational 
damage if debts are being 
chased that are not due balances 
on accounts are inaccurate. 

 
 
Suspense accounts should be 
regularly monitored and cleared. 
Where items need to remain in 
the suspense account they 
should be clearly marked so 
that the balance can be 
identified back to individual 
postings. 
 
The suspense account to be 
used to identify system/user 
issues which can help to 
improve processes and reduce 
resource requirements. 

Responsible Manager: 
 

Head of Finance and Customer 
Services 
 

 
Implementation date: 
 

Agreed. These are now up to date. 
Moving forwards the new system 
will automatically be reconciling a lot 
of the transactions reducing the 
volume of suspense items. This will 
be fully functional by August 2021. 

P
age 68

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

55 
 

 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Health and Safety Training Records 2020/21 
 

15th March 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Senior Health and Safety Advisor 
       Human Resources and Development Manager  
       Head of Transformation and Organisational Development 
  
 

P
age 69

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

56 
 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 26 

2. Audit Scope and objective .............................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 27 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary .......................................................................................................................................................................................................... 28 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations ...................................................................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Independence and Ethics: ....................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 31 

APPENDIX A............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

APPENDIX B............................................................................................................................................................................................................. Error! Bookmark not defined. 

 
 

1. Introduction 
 

The audit of Health and Safety Training Records was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for Redditch Borough 
Council for 2020/21 as approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27th July 2020 and for Bromsgrove District Council as approved by the 
Audit, Standards and Governance Committee on 5th March 2020. The audit was a risk based systems audit of Health and Safety Training Records as operated by 
Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council. 
  

1.1. This area of review is fundamental to all areas within the Corporate priorities as corporate health and safety and well-being is a statutory requirement.            
 

1.2. The following Corporate risks were relevant to this review: 
 

 Non-compliance with Health and Safety Legislation 
 

 
 
The following Service Risks were relevant to this review: 

 Failure to be pro-active on Health and Safety Matters 

 Failure to adequately manage health & safety 

 Failure to ensure the health & safety of the Public / Staff and visitors using services 
 

1.3. This review was undertaken during the months of October – January 2021. 
  

P
age 70

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222131
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222132
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222133
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222134
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222135
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222136
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Health%20and%20Safety%20Training%20Records%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc516222137


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

57 
 

2. Audit Scope and objective 
 

2.1. This review has been undertaken to provide assurance that the policy and process surrounding health and safety, specifically health and safety training, including 
identification of required training, deployment of training for both new and existing employees and the maintenance of training records. In addition, an assessment of 
the impact of Covid-19 on the recommendations still outstanding from the 2018-19 Health and Safety report along with the remaining risks. 

 
2.2. The scope covered: 

 

 Health and safety training policies and adherence thereto 

 Identification and monitoring of training (including where staff have been redeployed) 

 Deployment of training 

 Maintenance of records. 

 Remaining recommendations from the 2018-19 Health and Safety report. 
 
2.3. This reviewed covered policies and procedures in place at the time of the audit. 

 
2.4. This review did not cover: 

 

 Risk assessment and risk management in relation to Health and Safety. 

3. Audit Opinion and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. From the audit work carried out we have given an opinion of moderate assurance over the control environment in this area.  The level of assurance has been 

calculated using a methodology that is applied to all Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service audits and has been defined in the “Definition of Audit Opinion 
Levels of Assurance” table in Appendix A.  However, it should be noted that statements of assurance levels are based on information provided at the time of the audit.   

  
3.2. We have given an opinion of moderate assurance in this area because the system of control is generally sound however some of the expected controls are not in 

place and / or are not operating effectively therefore increasing the risk that the system will not meet its objectives.  Assurance can only be given over the 
effectiveness of controls within some areas of the system. 
 

 
3.3. The review found the following areas of the system were working well: 

 Progress on the recommendations included in the 2018/19 Health and Safety Report 

 Management Review of Health and Safety Policies 

 Budget management via Bid System 

 Progress towards defining management responsibilities for identifying training 

 Delivery of training via expected means e.g. face to face, E-learning etc. 

P
age 71

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

58 
 

3.4. The review found the following areas of the system where controls could be strengthened: 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
3.5. One area to also note is in regard to the collation and monitoring of information relating to temporary redeployment. The audit confirmed that there was no corporate 

understanding of the number of Officers redeployed at any one time during the pandemic. A lessons learned would be that the collation of this information would allow 
in future times of redeployment to monitor services that are the most deeply affected, if there is a continual resourcing issue, and if the staff redeployed are the most 
suitable for the role. 

 
 
3.6. Actions taken against the 2018/19 Health and Safety Recommendations can be found at Appendix C. 
 
 

4. Detailed Findings and Recommendations 

 
The issues identified during the audit have been set out in the table below along with the related risks, recommendations, management responses and action plan.  The issues 
identified have been prioritised according to their significance / severity.  The definitions for high, medium and low priority are set out in the “Definition of Priority of 
Recommendations” table in Appendix B. 
 
 

 Priority 
(see Appendix B) 

Section 4 
Recommendation 
number 

Training Records and subsequent limitations High 1 

Ref. Priority Finding Risk Recommendation Management Response 

New matters arising from 2020/21 audit testing 

1 H Training Records and subsequent 
limitations  

 
The diverse nature of the information 
repositories used to store training 
records are creating inefficiencies and 
leading to unmitigated risk in relation 
to the effective, purposeful, monitoring 
and tracking of the Authorities training 
in relation to Health and Safety (and 
other training areas). 

 
 
 
Failure to identify and monitor 
training and training needs for 
officers throughout the authority 
leading to; 
 
Failure to evidence conformance 
with health and safety legislation 
and; 

 
 
 
In addition to the abilities 
afforded following the 
implementation of the new 
system, a designated 
responsibility for training 
records should be established 
to allow the centralisation of 
training records, to allow 

 
Responsible Manager: 
 

Becky Talbot – Human Resources 
Manager 
 
Implementation Date: 
 

November 2021 
 
Management Response: 

P
age 72

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

59 
 

 

 
Positive assurance could not be given 
over the timely deployment of training 
courses. This is due to the lack of a 
centrally held training records system 
that can provide accurate reporting on 
any individuals training record, the 
frequency of delivery of training and 
the percentage completion of training 
of applicable candidates. 
 
A training system does exist, but the 
reporting functionalities seen during 
the audit are limited in scope and do 
not provide useable reports to achieve 
the metrics expected as outlined 
above. It also provides limited 
confidence in the accuracy of the 
information contained with varying 
numbers of officers recorded as 
completing what is deemed 
mandatory training, for example 
recording 18 officers only completing 
the Display Screen Equipment 
training, despite an obviously larger 
number of officers regularly accessing 
laptops and/or desktop PC's. 
 
Testing did also identify a number of 
locally held records for Environmental 
Services and Housing Repair and 
Maintenance, these again held no 
consistent data and could not be used 
to identify any individuals training 
records accurately with large gaps in 
fundamental training courses and 
outdated training records. 
 

 
Lack of efficiency when 
delivering training courses (e.g. 
grouping training possibilities) 
 
Leading to reputational risk and 
possible financial loss through 
fines. 

reporting abilities to be utilised. 
 
Furthermore, a 
forum/communication line 
between service managers, 
training records teams and 
Health and Safety should be 
established to allow the 
updating of any training 
completed to be promptly 
recorded on the sole, centrally 
held training record system. 
This would also allow the 
frequency of training to be set 
within the system to prompt the 
delivery of refresher courses. 

 

Following the implementation of the 
new system, it will be a requirement 
that all training will be recorded on 
the system to include training 
coordinated corporately and at 
service levels. 
 
Training will be required in service 
areas, if they are the training 
administrators for their specific area. 
 
The system will generate reminders 
to Managers, Employees and HR 
when renewal dates are 
approaching. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 73

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

60 
 

 

5. Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and are able to express an 
objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the audit no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area of review. 

 
 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

 
  

P
age 74

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

61 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service  
 

 
 

Final Internal Audit Report 
 

Critical Review – Use of Agency staff and consultants 2020-21 
 

4th March 2021 
 
 

Distribution: 

 
To:  Head of Finance and Interim Section 151 Officer  
 Team Leader – Contracts and Commercial 
 Procurement Officer 
 Senior Business Support Accounting Technician 
 Head of Business Transformation, Organisational Development and Digital Strategy  
 Human Resources & Development Manager  
 
CC: Chief Executive  

Deputy Chief Executive. 

P
age 75

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

62 
 

 

Contents 

 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 62 

2. Critical Review Scope ............................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................. 63 

3. Critical Review Overview and Executive Summary ............................................................................................................................................................................................................ 63 

4. Detailed Challenges ................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................ 65 

5.  Overall Conclusion ...................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

6.   Independence and Ethics: ......................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 73 

  

1. Introduction 
 

1.1 The Critical Review of the use of agency staff and consultants was carried out in accordance with the Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service Audit Plan for 
Redditch Borough Council for 2020/21 as approved by the Audit, Governance and Standards Committee on 27 th July 2020. The review was a critical review to 
analyse, evaluate and challenge the use of agency staff and consultants as operated by Redditch Borough Council. 

 
1.2 This review relates to all corporate priorities and objectives.  

 
1.3 The following corporate risk register entries were relevant to this review: - 
 

• COR 10 – Decisions made to address financial pressures and implement new projects that are not informed by robust data and     evidence   
   

The following service risk register entries were relevant to this review: - 
 
 •    Fin 4 - Fail to effectively manage high value procurements resulting in breach of EU procurement rules.  

 
1.4 This review was undertaken during the months of July, August and September 2020. 
 
 

 

P
age 76

A
genda Item

 6

file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490907
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490908
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490909
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490910
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490911
file:///W:/InternalAudit/AF%20202021%20RBC%20BDC/RBC-%20BDC%20Joint%20Final%20Reports/5%20-%20Use%20of%20Agency%20Staff%20and%20Consultants%20%20Final%20Audit%20Report%202020-21.docx%23_Toc53490912


BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

63 
 

2. Critical Review Scope  
 

2.1.  This review has been undertaken to evaluate, analyse and challenge:  
 

 The use of and adherence to procurement rules bringing in consultants.  

 The use of Matrix for the hiring of agency workers and if not then the correct procurement procedures and frameworks are being used.  

 Agency workers and consultants used since the Section 24 notice was given and during the pandemic to ensure these were used as part of critical service 
requirements. 

 
2.2.  The scope covered:    
 

 Process of bringing in agency workers and consultants.  

 Monitoring of procurement projects around the hiring of agency staff and use of consultants.  

 Service Requirements 

 Budget analysis and monitoring  
 
 
2.3.  This review did not cover: 
 

 Other types of procurement projects 

 The Due North - Pro-actis system functionality 

3. Critical Review Overview and Executive Summary 

 
3.1. As this is a critical review there is no level of assurance given. 
 
3.2 During the review the auditor had meetings with multiple officers involved in the services across both Redditch Borough Council and Bromsgrove District Council to 

gain an understanding on the processes that are undertaken when bringing in agency workers or using consultants. Also, to gain an insight into what barriers may 
exist to prevent services following any procedure rules or processes. (See Section 4 below) 

 
3.3 As part of the review the auditor also had meetings with multiple services to gain an understanding on what agency staff and consultants have been used since the 

Section 24 notice and what controls/monitoring are in place to ensure that the Councils are only working under business critical requirements.  
 
3.4 It Should be noted that  although there was a section 24 notice in place that due to Covid-19 the authority needed to use additional agency staff to help support the 

services including Environmental Services, Customer Services, Housing and Repairs and Maintenance as these service are front facing and were serving the needs 
of the public during this time. 

 

P
age 77

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

64 
 

3.5 The review found the following areas were working well: 
 

 Procurement training – there has been training sessions carried out in carrying out procurement exercises. 
  

 Service assessment of the requirement to fill the positions for both authorities prior to engaging agency staff includes: -  
o regulation requirement. 
o Risk assessment outcomes  
o how feasible it is for current staff to be able to carry out the work or if additional support is needed. 
o how feasible it is for current staff to do the work, based on current skill sets or if they require to bring in a specialist to aid the authority. 
o workflow and if it will meet the strategy for the authority and service plan.  
o On funds available to bring in additional resource.  
o Staffing resources are low and require fillers to ensure that business continuity is in place. 

 

  Adherence to the procurement rules and process of consultants - 
o Out of the five service areas that were spoken with, only 3 out of the 5 have used consultants in the last 5years, of which all three services, 

environmental services, legal services and planning have existing frameworks in place where they were able to find the necessary consultants to 
assist.   

o Service areas were aware of the procurement rules and understood that if they required a consultant that was outside of the existing frameworks, that 
they would be liaising with the procurement team and would carry out a procurement exercise using the procurement rules and guidelines, however 
this has not yet needed to happen.  
  

 
3.6 There were some areas of the system that audit have challenged Management on: 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Challenge Section 4 Challenge number 

Use of Matrix 1 

Compliance with legislation 2 

Budgetary and actual spends on agency and consultancy workers 3 

P
age 78

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

65 
 

4. Detailed Challenges 

 
The challenges identified during the review have been set out in the table below along with the related risks and management action plan.   
 

Ref. Current Position Challenge Risk Management Responses 

1 Use of Matrix 
 

Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council have an 
exclusive contract with Matrix. This 
means that under the current terms of the 
contract, service areas should only be 
bringing in agency staff via agencies that 
fall under the Matrix umbrella.  
 

The correct process for hiring agency 
staff through MATRIX should be that, 
service areas speak with their service 
manager for approval and liaise with HR 
for advice on the agency staff and skillset 
required and then once agreed, officers 
should then log a job on Matrix, this is 
done via a portal. Service areas should 
only be using agencies that are under 
their umbrella to seek the correct 
candidate to fill the roll on the terms set 
out by the authority for the period 
required.   
 

Matrix do look at the councils spend on 
the website to see if we are using other 
agencies.  
 

 
However, the Councils face several 
barriers to using this agreement. 
 
1.) Specialist skills - all tested service 
mentioned that Matrix do not tend to have 

 

 
1.) During the review it was found that not all 

processes are being adhered to, so can 
both Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council provide 
assurance that there is a robust control in 
place to monitor the in-take of agency 
staff through Matrix, as well as the in-
take of agency staff from agencies 
outside of Matrix including the use of 
exemption forms?  
 

2.) Is enough being done to assess if Matrix 
is fit for purpose and fits the needs of the 
Council to find and bring in agency staff 
who are skilled and qualified in the job 
role advertised?   
 

3.) Is there value for money within this 
contract especially considering the 
additional resources used by the 
Services to undertake their own 
groundwork in the identifying, and 
engaging of agency staff themselves? If 
not then is there evidence that the 
council is proactively challenging matrix 
on its provision under the contract. 
 

4.) Have the  Council considered the  benefit 
of providing feedback surveys to staff on 
the use of Matrix to help the authority 
form a better working relationship with 
Matrix for future agency work hire and 

 
 
Reputational damage 
and financial loss if the 
council is not compliant 
with contract terms and 
conditions 
requirements when 
using Agencies outside 
of Matrix.   
 
The Council can be 
bound by Agency terms 
and conditions for a 
number of years and 
finders’ fees and 
penalty payments can 
be triggered 
inadvertently.  Need 
whole organisation 
visibility of potential 
employees subject to 
historic agency T&Cs 
 
 
Reputational damage 
and possible 
compensation claims if 
the agency workers 
and consultants are not 
qualified to undertake 
the role they are 
employed for. 

 
 
HR & OD Manager Comments 

 
The decision to continue with Matrix 
was taken at a Corporate level with a 
commitment from services to reduce 
their reliance on agency staff.  The 
contract was extended on a plus 1 to 
allow the flexibility to review  once the 
use and spend of agency staff  is 
reflective of the requirement moving 
forward thus enabling a review of the 
actual requirements and not on a like 
for like basis. 
 
HR are clear with Mangers that only 
Matrix can be used for agency staff 
 
There is a clear agreement with Matrix 
that if the contract is not providing the 
level or specialist staff required that 
they will source the required companies 
to extend the agencies available to us 
on Matrix.  Issues need to be reported 
to HR to ensure this can be picked up 
with our account managers.  
 
 
Procurement Responses 
 

The Matrix contract needs to be 
managed to ensure they are fulfilling the 
requirements.  Officers need to speak to 

P
age 79

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

66 
 

officers with specialist skillsets on their 
books and therefore the authority have to 
find these officers themselves.  
2.) Time - All tested service areas 
mentioned that although Matrix are paid 
to bring in the agencies and do the leg 
work, the service areas are finding that 
they have to do the leg work to find the 
correct agency staff and are also having 
to upload data on to the Matrix portal 
themselves.  
3.) Qualification / skillset - 3 out of the 6 
tested services mentioned that when 
using matrix, candidates could be 
individuals who do not have the correct 
skillset stated in the requirements.  
4.) Agencies - 2 out of the 6 services 
reviewed mentioned that Matrix will not 
contact agencies outside of their umbrella 
and it is the authority that has to ask 
other agencies/candidates to sign up 
through Matrix. 
5.) Not engaging - 1 out of the 6 services 
mentioned that Matrix is not engaging 
enough with the service throughout the 
process. 
6.) Communication - It was learnt during 
the review that service areas are not 
reporting issues to HR about issues with 
Matrix which means that the barriers are 
not be resolved. 
 
 

also to aid the authority with future 
contract specifications for the use of 
agency workers?  
 

5.) Has the authority looked at other 
avenues to support service areas with 
bringing in specialists especially when 
the Matrix contract ends? 
 

6.) As service areas need to bring in 
specialists from outside of Matrix, are 
both authorities able to provide 
assurance that there is the correct level 
of support in place to support services to 
go to other agencies if it provides value 
to the authority in enabling it to reach its 
goals?  
 
 

7.) As discussions with several service areas 
has raised concerns around Matrix not 
having specialists on their books, is the 
authority able to provide assurance that 
Matrix can find and provide specialists to 
aid the services deliver their service 
strategy?   

 
 

Matrix if they are not getting the correct 
candidates through so they have the 
opportunity to resolve this, HR as 
contract managers should be involved 
also. 
 
 
There are other compliant contracts 
with other neutral vendors similar to 
Matrix available.   
 
Some agencies will not sign up to 
Matrix as they do not want to lose the 
large margins they achieve by signing 
up direct with the council.  Matrix 
protects the council from this. 
 
Matrix provides candidates but it is 
ultimately for service areas to assess 
skills and qualifications before offering a 
placement.   
 
No whole organisation oversight of staff 
who have worked on temporary 
contracts outside of Matrix and may 
therefore trigger fees if re-employed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 Compliance with Legislation 
 
Adherence to the procurement rules 
and process of agency staff  

 

 
 
 

1.) Following discussions with service areas 
there were instances learnt where 

 
 
 
Reputational damage 
and financial loss if the 

 
HR & OD Comments 

 
HR are clear that we will not support 
Managers accessing agencies outside 

P
age 80

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

67 
 

As part of the review a sample testing 
was carried out on various service areas 
to ensure that any agency staff being 
brought in for use falls in line and 
adheres to the procurement process of 
the terms and conditions of the contract 
set up with MATRIX.  
 
Although all services are set up on 
MATRIX there have been occasions 
where agency staff were brought in via 
other agencies directly and not through 
MATRIX. This occurred mainly where a 
specialist was required that could not be 
found via MATRIX. In these cases the 
service found that they had to do the leg 
work. Also if they happened to use 
another means to the company MATRIX, 
an exemption was not always signed or 
put in place and that legal and 
procurement were unaware until an issue 
presented itself. 
 
It is acknowledged that over the last 5 
years things have improved across the 
authority as now if the authority requires 
a specialist, they would ask the agency to 
communicate with Matrix directly. 
However there have been instances 
where staff were brought in outside of 
Matrix in the last year. 
 
Currently there are several members of 
staff who work for the council as an 
agency worker, however in line with 
Government legislation if a temp is not 
provided a contract at the end of their 
existing contract of 1 or 2 years, then the 
authority needs to show that there is a 

services over the last 5 years have not 
been adhering to the procurement 
process. Therefore, can the authority 
provide assurance that there is a sound 
control in place to investigate 
weaknesses in the system?  
 

2.) Are both authorities able to provide 
assurance that if service areas are not 
following the correct procedure rules for 
using agency staff and consultants that 
there are sanctions set up and in place to 
mitigate the risks to the authority?  
 

 
3.) Is the Council undertaking enough 

monitoring of the length of service of 
agency workers to ensure that they do not 
breach Council and government (HMRC) 
rules. 
 

Challenges around Section 24 notice 

 
4.) Since the section 24 notice was given, 

there was an employment freeze unless it 
is business critical, is the authority able to 
give assurance that it is confident that all 
services would have a full understanding 
of what business critical entails especially 
in the current times with COVID-19.  

 
 
 

council is not compliant 
with procurement and 
legislative requirements 
when using Agency 
workers and 
consultants. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

of Matrix 
 
HR have no knowledge if Managers go 
to other agencies, this block needs to 
be in place and service and HOS level 
to ensure order / invoices are not 
approved. 
 
 
Procurement Comments 

 
Any staff used outside of Matrix is a 
breach of the contract procedure rules 
and a breach of the Matrix contract. 
 
No process for legal review of agency 
terms and conditions outside of Matrix 
 
All relevant staff should have attended 
Procurement Training in the past year 
and should be aware of the 
Procurement Rules.  Future 
procurement training should directly 
address the issue of temporary staff. 

P
age 81

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

68 
 

fair reason for not renewing the contract. 
If staff have worked for more than 4 years 
then they should automatically become a 
permanent employee. 
 
The review found that contracts have 
been rolled forwards consistently and 
contracts have not been offered to make 
staff full time employees.   
 
 
Procurement process for use of 
agency staff  
 

Currently both Redditch Borough Council 
and Bromsgrove District Council are 
under an exclusive contract with the 
company MATRIX who are responsible 
for providing the authority all agency 
staff. Under the current procurement 
rules and as part of the terms and 
conditions of the existing contract service 
areas should follow the procurement 
process of the contract with MATRIX and 
should not be signing any new agency 
staff via anyone other than MATRIX.  
 

If another agency signed up to Matrix and 
then was used by the authority, then it 
would be deemed as appropriate as the 
authority would still be using Matrix. 
Under the current procured contract, 
exemptions should not be given in any 
circumstance and all other 3rd party 
agencies must be set up via Matrix 
before being used. This would mean that 
the 3rd party agency is required to have a 
contract set up with Matrix directly and 
not the authority.  

P
age 82

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

69 
 

3 Budgetary and actual spends on 
agency and consultancy workers 
 
Monitoring the use of consultants  
 

As part of the review discussions were 
held with several service areas to 
understand how they would monitor the 
in-take and use of consultants and 
monitor the budget spent.  
 
During the review conversations were 
held with procurement and six service 
areas including Legal, Planning, 
Customer services, Environmental 
Services, Repairs and Maintenance and 
Housing.  
 

The review found that: - 
1.) 4 out of the 6 tested service areas are 
using consultants. 
2.) All services which are using 
consultants or specialists are currently 
part of existing frameworks. 
3 All call offs from frameworks and 
contracts must be registered on the 
proactis (Due north) system. There are 
also two copies of the contract. One is 
held by procurement for monitoring and 
the other is held by the service area. 
4.) 2 out of the 4 service areas which use 
consultants have a budget in place to 
forecast how much will be spent for 
consultant usage.  
5.) The remaining 2 service areas 
(Planning and Legal) have a budget 
designated for consultants, but do not 
have a fixed yearly budget as they may 
require specialists on an ad-hoc basis. To 

Challenges  
 
 
 
 

1.) If there is no consistency in the recording 
of actual expenditure on agency workers 
and consultants how is the Council 
ensuring that it is being fully transparent 
with its expenditure for these cost areas? 
Would it not be better to have a cost 
code for these areas even if there is no 
budget allocation so that there could be 
full monitoring and transparency 
especially with the current S24 and the 
need to reduce the costs of the council 
now and in the coming years.  As there 
have been limitations within the current 
financial system is this something that is 
being considered and implemented for 
the new financial system? 
 

2.) How is the Council able to fully monitor 
its reliance on the provision of agency 
workers and the use of consultants in 
order to review this expenditure with the 
aim to reduce future costs. 

 
3.) Can the authority provide assurance that 

if they are using an incorrect cost code 
that there is a clear audit trail in place in 
case of challenge? 

 
4.) As  consultants and agency staff are paid 

a higher rate to work in comparison to full 
time staff, is the authority able to provide 
assurance under the Section 24 notice, 
that agency staff and consultants are 
only brought in as an absolute last resort 

 
 
 
 
 
Reputational damage 
and financial loss with 
savings under S24 not 
being achieved if the 
council is unable to 
effectively monitor the 
costs of using agency 
workers and 
consultants. 

 
 
Finance Comments: - 

 
The finance team will encourage with 
budget holders on monthly and 
quarterly budget monitoring that the 
dedicated account code for agency 
workers is monitored and reviewed 
along with the relevant budget 
manager. It is also expected when the 
new ERP finance system is 
implemented budget holders will be 
able to see live expenditure and 
therefore able to monitor more 
efficiently any mis coded and/or 
expected agency expenditure 
immediately rather than relying on 
current spreadsheets sent monthly.  
 
 
 
Procurement comments: -  

 
There is a cost code for agency staff, 
but query whether it is used consistently 
or appropriately? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 83

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

70 
 

reduce the risk, they have regular 
discussions with the designated 
accountant for the service area.  
 
Monitoring of in-take of agency staff 

As part of the review discussions were 
held around how in general the council 
and service areas within the council are 
monitoring the in-take of agency staff and 
how the contracts of agency workers are 
monitored to ensure that the council is 
compliant.  
 

It was learnt that corporately:  - 
1.) Business cases are taken forward as 
an agenda item for in-takes of agency 
staff in front of CMT and agreed or 
agreed in committee if there is a bigger 
purpose to bring in a higher volume of 
agency workers.  
2.) If agency staff are hired through 
MATRIX then HR would be able to 
monitor the in-take of staff through 
agencies that come under MATRIX 
umbrella.  
3.) If service areas bring in agency staff 
from places other than MATRIX then 
there is more risk associated as the HR 
team are not able to monitor the contract 
and often it is too late by the time 
procurement are aware to prevent any 
legal/financial implications to the 
authority.   
 

During the review audit carried out 
discussions with 6 different service areas 
including Legal, Planning, Customer 
services, Housing, Repairs and 
Maintenance and Environmental 

when other avenues have been 
explored?  
 

 
5.) With certain service areas requiring 

specialists to be able to do the job role 
this has caused some issues with 
employing permanent employees into the 
role. Is the council confident that it has 
explored all avenues e.g. market 
supplements, benefits packages etc 
while still complying with the councils 
current pay model and terms and 
conditions of employment, in order to 
address this and ensure that the Council 
is using the most cost effective method of 
providing a service to the Public. 

 
6.) During the review it was found that the 

controls for bringing in agency staff 
should be that the head of service signs it 
off and then it goes to CMT for approval. 
However, as it was learnt during the 
review that some services have gone to 
agencies outside of Matrix, can the 
authority provide the assurance that CMT 
are aware of services going to other 
agencies outside of Matrix?  

 
 

 

P
age 84

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

71 
 

services. From the review it was found 
that out of 6 tested services: -  
1.) 5 out of 6 service areas have used 
agency staff in the last 5 years.  
2.) Out of those 5 services, all 5 would 
hold conversations with HR to gain 
advice and make them aware of any new 
agency recruits signed through MATRIX.  
3.) 3 out of  the 5 services tend to talk to 
procurement about using agency staff 
and gain advice.  
4.) All of the service areas would look at 
the service requirements and present a 
business case to their head of service, 
where they would then sit with head of 
finance to see if there  can be a budget in 
place to bring in an agency member.  
5.) 4 out of the 5 services that use 
agency staff have a dedicated cost codes 
for using agency staff, whilst the 
remaining service uses staff salary cost 
code, which means that there is a gap in 
the audit trail of tracking financial 
analysis.  
6.) It was admitted that some agency 
staff have been working for the council 
for more than 12 months (12 weeks 
without a finder’s fee) and not offered a 
full-time contract, so there is a weakness 
in the monitoring of staff from a service 
perspective. As well as this there is risk 
that the authority is breaching IR35 and is 
at risk of repaying the tax savings that the 
authority made.   
7.) All service stated that if they were to 
take up new consultants they would liaise 
and sit with procurement to set up a new 
consultant through procurement rules. 
Each service also stated that they have 

P
age 85

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

72 
 

received training on how to conduct 
appropriate procurement projects. 
 
Section 24 notice – intake of 
consultants and agency workers 

 
Since the Section 24 notice was given, 
there has been an in-take of agency staff 
and consultants to help support the 
services within the authority to carry out 
day-to-day duties and give professional 
advice.  
 
Currently Agency staff and consultants 
that are brought in have to be both 
signed off by the head of service and also 
agreed at CMT prior to being used.   
 
Budget monitoring is down to the 
individual service areas to monitor and all 
services have been given their own 
unique cost code for agency staff and 
consultants to be put on.  
 
However, not all service areas are using 
the correct budget code when using 
agency staff and are posting agency staff 
costs to the same cost codes as full-time 
staff, which means there is no clear audit 
trail. (clear to budget case)  
 
During the review the authorities were 
going through a difficult time with the 
COVID-19 pandemic and front-line 
services have needed to bring in agency 
staff to support those services deemed 
as business critical.   
 
 

P
age 86

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

73 
 

5.  Overall Conclusion 

 
The Critical review looked at the process of bringing in agency workers and consultants and monitoring of procurement projects at both Redditch Borough Council and 
Bromsgrove District Council. The review also looked at the Matrix contract and the barriers that are preventing service areas from hiring agency staff through Matrix.  
 
Although it can be noted that in the last 5 years since the last internal audit report was carried out there have been improvements to the procurement process in using agency 
staff and consultants and service areas are aware of the correct processes that needs to be undertaken after procurement training was carried out to help services understand 
the correct procedures that they should be adhering to.  
 
However the review has identified some risks still remain for example when a specialist is required Matrix has not always been able to provide a satisfactory candidate 
therefore service areas have had to go to other agencies to find the required agency worker with the specialist skillsets. and that Procurement have not always been aware of 
this unless an issue presented itself. Therefore, challenges have been made on how fit for purpose and value for money the Matrix contract is and going forward if this is the 
best solution for the Council’s when hiring Agency Workers. 

6.   Independence and Ethics: 

 

 WIASS confirms that in relation to this review there were no significant facts or matters that impacted on our independence as Internal Auditors that we are required to 
report. 

 WIASS conforms with the Institute of Internal Auditors Public Sector Internal Audit Standards as amended and confirms that we are independent and are able to 
express an objective opinion in relation to this review.  

 WIASS confirm that policies and procedures have been implemented in order to meet the IIA Ethical Standards. 

 Prior to and at the time of the review no non-audit or audit related services have been undertaken for the Council within this area. 

 
 
Head of Internal Audit Shared Services 

 
  

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

74 
 

Appendix 4 
 
FOLLOW-UP REPORTS: 
 
 

Worcestershire Internal Audit Shared Service 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Applications Including Sec 106 agreements 2019/20 
 

2nd Follow-up Report -  10th June 2021 
 

Distribution:  
To:  Head of Planning and Regeneration 
       Senior Accounting Technician 

Development Management Manager 
Legal Services Team Leader - Property & Planning 
Business Support Technician 

 

CC:  Executive Director & Deputy Chief Executive 
 Chief Executive  

P
age 88

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

75 
 

Contents 

 

Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach ........................................................................................................................ 75 

Section B – Conclusion ...................................................................................................................................................................... 76 

Section C – Current Postion  ................................................................................................................................................................4 

APPENDIX A ........................................................................................................................................................................................6 

APPENDIX B ........................................................................................................................................................................................7 

 
 

1 Section A - Justification of Audit Follow-up Approach 
The date of the final audit Report was 04/02/2020 with the first follow up report on 27/10/2020 and is being followed up again because: 
 

 1 medium priority recommendation remained outstanding: and 

 At least three months have passed since the previous follow-up:  
 

Please note that recommendation implemented from the previous follow up have not been included in this report 
 
 
The following audit approach was therefore applied: 
 

 The 1 medium priority recommendation outstanding from the first follow up has been updated with the current position.  (Please see Section C) 

 Where required recommendations against weaknesses in key controls have been tested substantively/ evidenced. 

2 Section B - Conclusion - Current Position statement 

The original audit report gave Moderate Assurance over the control environment and this is the second follow-up. The first follow up report found that one 
recommendation had not been implemented. 
 
The 2nd follow-up found that the 1 ‘medium’ priority recommendation detailed in Section C has now been fully implemented and Internal Audit are satisfied the 
risk has been mitigated and no further follow ups are necessary.  
 
This follow up was undertaken during the month of June 2021. 

P
age 89

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

76 
 

 

3 Section C – Current Position 

 

Ref./ 
Priority 
 

Recommendation 
 

Management Response and Action Plan  1st Follow up 
Position as at 23/10/2020 
 

 2nd Follow up 
Position as at 08/06/2021 
 
 

1 
Medium 

 

Section 106 agreements Monitoring 

 
To conduct a full review of the monitoring 
that takes place currently in relation to 
Section 106 agreements monetary and non-
monetary and determine if the current 
monitoring process used is fit for purpose 
and fits the needs of the council. This review 
needs to consider if additional monitoring is 
required in relation to the capture of 
expenditure against each individual S106 
agreement especially as this is the ideal 
opportunity with the implementation of a new 
finance system. 
 
A full reconciliation between the S106 
monitoring database and the financial 
system should be undertaken on at least a 
quarterly basis. 
 
 
To review who has the overall responsibility 
of the Section 106 agreements in the 
authority and is responsible for actively 
monitoring the S106 agreements or if there is 
a requirement where current resources need 
to be reviewed with the potential of using 
some S106 monies for the administration of 
S106 agreements.  

 
Responsible Manager: Strategic Planning 

and Conservation Manager 
 
Implementation date: 

June 2020 
 

 
Agreed.  Strategic Planning and 
Conservation Manager will conduct the full 
review. 
 

Agreed. Finance - Business Support 
Technician will lead on this 
 

Agreed.  Strategic Planning and 
Conservation Manager will lead on this 
 

 Partially Implemented 
 

The Finance Section are now 
running a live S106 monitoring 
spreadsheet, which is updated 
and reviewed more frequently 
than the original recommendation 
of quarterly. Internal Audit are 
satisfied that the risk to the 
Council has been reduced.  
 
The service re-directed an officer 
within the Strategic Planning and 
Conservation Team to be 
responsible for the Section 106 
agreements, however due to 
unforeseen circumstances (Covid-
19 pandemic) and staffing issues, 
the date of implementation of the 
remaining actions became 
unrealistic. 
 

 Implemented 
 

Since the first follow up; the 
service has appointed an 
officer with responsibility for 
the Section 106 agreements. 
The role will be responsible for 
S106 monitoring and in 
particular keeping the 
spreadsheet used for 
recording all S106 agreements 
up to date. 
 
 

 
 

P
age 90

A
genda Item

 6



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE   

 

77 
 

 
Appendix 5 

Quality Assurance Improvement Plan. 

Action 
Number 

Area for Action 
and Standards 

Reference 

Outcome 
Required 

Action Lead person Target Date for 
completion 

Date of 
Completion 

Latest Position 

1 1000 Updated Charter 
and Partner 
approval. 

To review and update as 
appropriate, and present 
to COG and Partner 
Committees for approval. 

Head of Internal 
Audit & Team 

Leader 

Sep-21 
(Annual 
Reports) 

September 
2021 

September 2021 
Charter provided to all 
Partner Committees as part 
of the Annual Report 
reporting cycle.  
Action completed.  

2 1210.A1 - Training 
Requirements 

Professional 
qualifications to be 
obtained. 

Auditors to enhance their 
skills and qualifications 
through professional study 
e.g. IIA 

Auditors 2023/24 Ongoing June 2021: 
Auditor enrolled with IIA and 
continuing training to obtain 
further professional 
qualifications.  
Progressing. 

3 2420 - Timely 
Completion of 
Review Stages 

Improvement in 
issuing the ‘Draft 
Report’ to the 
agreed date as set 
out in the Brief.  To 
make 
improvements in 
the monitoring of 
the management 
response after the 
issue of a Draft 
Report. 

Monitor the issue of Draft 
Reports and the receipt of 
management response 
during the financial year 
taking appropriate and 
timely action where the 
target dates are stressed.  

Auditors Mar-22 Ongoing June 2021: 
Being monitored 
Progressing. 

4 2500.A1 - Follow 
Up  

More efficient and 
timely follow up 
regarding reported 
management action 
plans.  

To review and enhance 
the follow up process, and 
monitor progress to 
reduce potential slippage. 

Audit Team 
Leader 

Mar-22 Ongoing June 2021: 
Included in Auditors work 
plan for the year.  Being 
monitored and tracked and 
discussed at 1:2:1s 
Progressing. 

 

P
age 91

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



BROMSGROVE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT, STANDARDS & GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE                 
 
 

WORK PROGRAMME 2021/22 
 

 

October 2021  

 

 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer’s Report  

 Grant Thornton – Annual Audit Letter* 

 Grant Thornton – External Audit Plan 2021-2022* 

 Grant Thornton – Progress Report and Sector Update  

 Grant Thornton - Housing Benefit 2020/2021 Certification Letter* 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report  

 Treasury Outturn Report* 

 Financial Savings Monitoring Report * 

 Risk Register Update 

 Update from the Risk Champion  

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 

 

January 2022 

 

 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer’s Report  

 External Audit – Progress / Action Plan Update Report 

 Internal Audit – Progress Report 

 Financial Savings Monitoring Report  

 Overall Risk and Corporate Governance Report 

 Risk Champion’s Verbal Update 

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 

 

March 2022 

 

 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officer’s Report  

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee – Annual Report 2021-

2022 

 Grant Thornton – Audit Plan 2022-2023 

 Internal Audit - Draft Audit Plan 

 Risk Champion’s Verbal Update 

 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme 

 

 
*  Items to be considered at a future meeting 

Page 93

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To confirm the accuracy of the minutes of the Audit, Standards and Governance Committee meeting held on 15th July 2021
	Minutes

	4 Standards Regime - Monitoring Officers' Report
	6 Internal Audit Monitoring Report
	9 Audit, Standards and Governance Committee Work Programme

